






























Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 1 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES, 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 

ILLINOIS, HELD SEPTEMBER 29, 2020 
 

 
The special meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the Council 
Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on 
September 29, 2020.   President Pro Tem Glotz called this meeting to order at 6:45 p.m.  

 
At this time, President Pro Tem Glotz stated this meeting is being conducted pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s 
disaster proclamation and Public Act 101-0640, which amends requirements of the Open Meetings Act due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Pursuant to the same, the Village Board finds that it would be impractical to 
conduct an in-person meeting with all members present. Elected officials confirmed they were able to hear 
one another. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Clerk Thirion called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following: 
 
                         President Pro-Tem: Michael W. Glotz    

Village Clerk:   Kristin A. Thirion 
 

                         Trustees: Cynthia A. Berg (Participated Electronically) 
 William P. Brady 
 William A. Brennan 
 Michael G. Mueller 
  

Absent:    Jacob C. Vandenberg, Village President 
    Diane M. Galante, Trustee 
  
Also Present:     

  Village Manager:  David Niemeyer  
  Asst. Village Manager:  Patrick Carr 
  Village Attorney:  Patrick Connelly 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to approve the agenda as written or 
amended for this meeting. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  
Absent: Vandenberg, Galante.  President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.  
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to approve and place on file the 
minutes of the Special Village Board Meeting held on September 15, 2020 as amended.  Vote on roll call. 
Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro 
Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file, 
RESOLUTION 2020-R-093 RECOGNIZING FIRE PREVENTION WEEK IN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK FROM OCTOBER 4 THROUGH OCTOBER 10, 2020. Fire Prevention Week is to be 
held in the Village of Tinley Park beginning October 4, 2020. All citizens are encouraged to do their share to 
provide a safe place in which to live and work by eliminating those fire hazards which cause the loss of life, 

Page | 16AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 2 
 

property, and resources. Fire Prevention Week is always scheduled to coincide with the anniversary of the 
Great Chicago Fire of 1871.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried. 
 
At this time President Pro Tem Glotz and Clerk Thirion presented the Tinley Park Business Spotlight.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz presented Bailey's Bar and Grill, located at 17731 S. Oak Park Avenue. Baileys 
offers a full-service food menu as well as a selection of imported and domestic beers, including more than 50 
craft beers on tap.  They also have one of the largest outdoor patios in Downtown Tinley. Owner’s Ron and 
Tammy Bailey presented an overview of their restaurant.  
 
Clerk Thirion presented Anytime Fitness located at 17823 S. 80th Avenue. Anytime Fitness offers 
supportive staff, state-of-the-art equipment plus training and coaching services. Derek Tucker, owner of 
Anytime Fitness, presented an overview of his business.  
 
At this time David Niemeyer, Village Manager, presented and update on the discussions with the State of 
Illinois related to the acquisition and clean up of the Tinley Park Mental Health Center (TPMHC). He noted 
that in June of this year a bill was passed by the Illinois General Assembly to authorize $15 million for clean-
up the TPMHC out of the Build Illinois Bond fund. Mr. Niemeyer stated he is unaware as to when these 
funds will be released.  He also commented that the Village is attempting to meet with the State to discuss 
the clean-up and the purchase of the property.  
 
Nancy O’Connor made comments on the environmental testing of the water at Oak Hall at the TPMHC 
property by Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. This test was done approximately a year ago. She has 
been in contact with State agencies to have the water removed and has not received any results.  She asked if 
the Village could intervene. She stated concerns about the water feeding into properties across from the 
TPMHC property and the overall neglect of the property over the years.  
 
Motion was made by President Pro Tem Glotz, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to consider approving the 
following Consent Agenda items: 
 
The following Consent Agenda items were read by the Village Clerk: 
 

A. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM ST. GEORGE SCHOOL, 6700 176TH STREET, TO CONDUCT A 
QUEEN OF HEARTS RAFFLE THROUGH OCTOBER 6, 2021, OR UNTIL A WINNER IS 
DRAWN, WITH THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE NOT TO EXCEED $250,000. 
WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN WEEKLY AT SIP WINE BAR. 
 

B. CONSIDER PAYMENTS OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,262,429.06 AS 
LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED SEPTEMBER 18 AND 
SEPTEMBER 25, 2020. 

Page | 17AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 3 
 

President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items from the 
Consent Agenda. No items were removed or discussed. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, Brennan, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion 
carried. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to waive first reading and adopt 
ORDINANCE 2020-O-061 APPROVING A SPECIAL USE FOR A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION OF 
THE PARK PLACE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 16300 S. HARLEM AVENUE (PETE’S FRESH MARKET).  The granting of this 
request will allow a warehouse/distribution use as part of Phase 1. Phase 2 will construct a new Pete’s Fresh 
Market Grocery Store, associated retail and renovation of the former K-Mart store. The Phase 1 approval was 
recommended by the Plan Commission with an exception to allow the overnight storage of five (5) delivery 
vehicles parked at the loading dock, conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022, 
prohibition of outdoor storage, and the planting of street trees prior to Phase 1 occupancy.  
 
The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on September 17, 2020, and voted 8-0 to recommend approval 
of the Special Use and adopt the Findings of Fact.  
 
Stephanie Dermonas of Pete’s Market presented an overview of the company’s plan and goals for the Tinley 
Park store and warehouse property.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. He asked when the 
ground breaking for this project would be.  Ms. Dermonas stated Pete’s deadline is June of 2021 to break 
ground. Trustee Brennan thanked Ms. Dermonas for her comments and stated that the Village is looking 
forward to Pete’s opening. President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment 
either in writing, telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments 
or requests to comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  
Brady, Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. During this item the phone 
disconnected.  Trustee Berg who was participating electronically was unable to participate in the vote.  
President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file , 
ORDINANCE 2020-O-062 GRANTING A FRONT YARD VARIATION FOR A PRINCIPAL 
STRUCTURE ON CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17549 66TH AVENUE. The Petitioners, 
Teva and Holly Majchrzak, are seeking a Variation to permit a residential home addition to be constructed 
with a front yard setback of 25 feet, instead of the required 30-foot setback. The request allows for a home 
addition to be constructed along the same front yard setback as the existing home. 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals held a Public Hearing on September 10, 2020, and voted 4-0 to recommend 
approval of the amended Variation request. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. During this item the phone 
disconnected.  Trustee Berg who was participating electronically was unable to participate in the vote. 
President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 

Page | 18AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 4 
 

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Glotz, to adopt and place on file, ORDINANCE 
2020-O-063 APPROVING A SPECIAL USE FOR A VOCATIONAL EDUCATIONAL FACILITY 
(MASSAGE SCHOOL) AT 18440 THOMPSON COURT, TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS.  The Petitioner, 
Marilyn Monaco, SAVI Properties, LLC, on behalf of Emmanuel Bistas, New Massage School for Massage 
is seeking a Special Use for a Vocational Educational Facility to be located at 18440 Thompson Ct., Suite 
10, in the Hickory Creek Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 
The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on September 17, 2020, and voted 8-0 to recommend approval 
of the Special Use and adopt the Findings of Fact. 
 

President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried. 
 

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file, CONSIDER 
ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-094 APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING 
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL BUILDING REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS SERVICES WITH 
RICK DANDAN (DBA LAKESIDE CONSULTANTS). Resolution 2020-R-094 modifies an existing 
professional service contract with Rick DanDan (DBA Lakeside Consultants) to perform building permit 
review and inspections for the Building Department. The modification will now include plumbing 
inspections. 
 
This was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting prior to this Village Board meeting. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Glotz, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to adopt and place on file, 
RESOLUTION 2020-R-095 APPROVING A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY REGARDING 
ISSUES RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 80TH AVENUE TRAIN STATION. The 
Village has had a dispute with the bonding company for the 80th Avenue Train Station about numerous 
problems that have occurred at the Station which the Village believes was related to the construction. The 
attached agreement between the Village and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company provides the Village with a 
$175,000 settlement as a final resolution of these issues. 
 

President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried. 

Page | 19AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 5 
 

 

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file, 
ORDINANCE 2020-O-060 AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK BY THE ADDITION OF TITLE XI CHAPTER 129L IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL 
CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX. Since the Village Board approved an ordinance 
amending the Tinley Park Zoning Code for the purpose of regulating adult-use cannabis business 
establishments (2020-O-038), and also established a business license and associated fee for an adult-use 
cannabis facility (2020-O-040), the final step is to pass an ordinance imposing a Municipal Cannabis 
Retailers' Occupation Tax (MCROT). This was previously discussed at a Committee of the Whole, and the 
recommendation was to impose the tax in the full amount of 3%. Following passage, the Village Treasurer 
will file the appropriate documentation with the Illinois Department of Revenue (IDOR), so the MCROT 
goes into effect on January 1, 2021. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to 
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, 
Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. President Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from Staff. There were none. 
 
President Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board.  
 
Trustee Brady stated that the month of October is Breast Cancer Awareness Month.  He stated that in 
recognition of this the Tinley Park Police Department is selling special Breast Cancer Awareness patches.  
The suggested donation for the patches is $10. The patches can be purchased at the police department.  
 
Trustee Berg stated that she and the petitioners for Pete’s Fresh Market were disconnected from the meeting 
during the following agenda items: 

• Ordinance 2020-O-061 approving a special use for a substantial deviation of the Park Place planned 
unit development with exceptions for the property located at 16300 Harlem Avenue (Pete’s Fresh 
Market); and  

• Ordinance 2020-O-062 granting a front yard variation for a principal structure on certain property 
located at 17549 66th Avenue. 

Trustee Berg also suggested that instead of cancelling the October 6, 2020 Village Board meeting the 
November 3, 2020.Village Board meeting should be postponed due to the Village Hall being used for an 
Election Day Polling Place. Village Manager Niemeyer noted that November 3, 2020, may be declared a 
state holiday.  If so, we may need to close.  After discussion it was the consensus of the Board to cancel the 
November 3, 2020, Village Board meeting and move it to a future date if needed.  
 
Trustee Brennan stated concerns about Board members sharing confidential information discussed at 
Executive Session. He questioned if the Board could address allowing Board Members to attend Executive 
Sessions remotely. Village Attorney Connelly noted that the Village continues to operate meetings under 
Governor Pritzker’s temporary rules established under the declaration of emergency. These temporary rules 
allow Board members to attend meetings remotely.  He stated that he would research if the amended Open 
Meetings Act addressed executive session specifically. Trustee Brennan stated he would like this to be 

Page | 20AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 6 
 

reviewed.  
 
Trustee Brady stated his concerns about Board Members violating the sanctity of executive session and noted 
that it affects the Village and developers negatively.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz stated that at the Special Village Board meeting held on September 15, 2020, he 
was unaware that the Village Attorney had issued an email to him regarding public comment.  The email 
stated that the temporary meeting rules used during the Governor’s Emergency Declaration allows written 
comments to be submitted and circulated to the Elected Officials. The temporary rules also provide an option 
for the public to be called during the meetings public comment item.  The Illinois Attorney General’s Public 
Access Counselor has not made a determination regarding a request for review about the reading aloud of 
public comments at Board meetings.  The Village Attorney suggested that public comments received in 
writing not be read out load at meetings, because it would be inconsistent with the position the Village has 
been following on this matter.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz noted that he has been working with Orland Township and would like to have the 
township present at a Village Board meeting regarding the grants and programs they offer to assist residents.  
He then directed the Village Manager to have staff inquire with the other Townships in the Village regarding 
their assistance programs.  President Pro Tem Glotz would like to ask all Townships to present their 
programs at a Board meeting.  
 
President Pro Tem Glotz stated his concerns about the breach of confidentiality at executive sessions.  He 
commented on the seriousness of keeping recordings of these sessions confidential. He then asked the 
Village Manager when the Chicago Tribune reporter contacted the Village.  Village Manager Niemeyer 
stated on Wednesday, September 21, 2020, at approximately 3:30 p.m. Mr. Niemeyer stated his concerns 
about issues that are discussed in Executive Session being discussed outside of the session.  This negatively 
impacts the Village of Tinley Park.  President Pro Tem Glotz would like the Village Manager to review the 
method by which executive session materials are distributed to the Village Board. He would like the Village 
Attorney and staff to review how the Open Meeting Act views remote participation at executive sessions and 
end remote participation in executive sessions at the next Board meeting.  
 

President Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, 
telephonically.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item.  
 
Nancy O’Connor stated her concerns with the environmental clean-up and safety at the Tinley Park Mental 
Health Center. She feels there is a conflict of interest between the State agencies involved with this property. 
For the safety of citizens should would also like to see this property fenced. President Pro Tem Glotz asked if 
either of the Environmental Protection Agencies (EPA) have considered testing the wells of near by 
properties.  She stated the U.S. EPA was surprised these wells had not been tested. President Pro Tem Glotz 
asked the Village Manager to forward the information from Ms. O’Connor to the Village’s environmental 
attorney and to contact the State about the wells being tested at neighboring properties.  
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, at 7:58 p.m. to adjourn to Executive Session 
to discuss the following:  
 

 

Page | 21AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                       September 29, 2020 7 
 

A. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, 
INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A 
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD BE ACQUIRED. 
 

B. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON BEHALF OF THE 
PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN ACTION IS 
PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE 
RECORDED AND ENTERED INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING. 

Vote on roll call:  Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante. 
President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by President Pro Tem Glotz, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn the regular Board meeting.  
Vote on roll call:  Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg, Galante.  
President Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried and adjourned the special Board meeting at 8:23 p.m. 
 

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that no 
discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
                     Village President 

 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________ 
                  Village Clerk 

Page | 22AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...





 

Tinley Park 
 

 
 
        

PrOClaMaTiOn 
reCOGniZinG  

The MOnTh Of OCTOber as 
 “naTiOnal bUllyinG anD CyberbUllyinG PreVenTiOn 

MOnTh” in The VillaGe Of Tinley Park 
 
 

Whereas, bullying is a problem that affects millions of students of all races and classes. 1 out of 4 kids 
is bullied and depending on their ages up to 43% of students have been bullied while online.; and  

Whereas, an estimated one hundred sixty thousand students in kindergarten through twelfth grade miss 
school every day due to a fear of being bullied; and  

Whereas, not only kids, but people of all ages can experience bullying, including in the workplace; and 

Whereas, bullying can take many forms, including verbal, physical, and most recently in cyberspace, 
and can happen in many places on and off school grounds; and 

Whereas, every October, schools and organizations across the country join STOMP Out Bullying™ in 
observing National Bullying Prevention Month. The goal: encourage schools, communities and organizations 
to work together to stop bullying and cyberbullying and put an end to hatred and racism by increasing awareness 
of the prevalence and impact of all forms of bullying on all children of all ages.  

nOW, TherefOre, be iT resOlVeD, by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley 
Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, that the month of October 2020, be designated as “National Bullying 
and Cyberbullying Prevention Month” in the Village of Tinley Park. 

 
APPROVED this 20th Day of October 2020. 

 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jacob C. Vandenberg, Village President 

 ATTEST: 
 
 ____________________________________ 

Kristin A. Thirion, Village Clerk 
 

Page | 23AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CONDUCT SWEARING IN 

CEREMONY FOR POLICE OFFICERS 

Ahmad Allan

Kyle Heneghan

 

 

Clerk Thirion 

Page | 24AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 25AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1 
 

RAFFLE LICENSE APPLICATION 
 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 

DATE: _____________________________ 
 

1. NAME OF ORGANIZATION:_________________________________________________________ 

2. ADDRESS:_________________________________________________________________________ 

3. MAILING ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

4. ADDRESS OF PLACE FOR RAFFLE DRAWING 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

5. CHECK TYPE OF NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION: (MUST BE IN EXISTENCE FOR A 
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS AND ATTACHED DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE) 
 

RELIGIOUS ___  CHARITABLE ___  LABOR ___  FRATERNAL ___ 
 

EDUCATIONAL ___  VETERANS ___  BUSINESS ___ 
 

6. HOW LONG HAS THE ORGANIZATION BEEN IN EXISTENCE:__________________________ 

7. PLACE AND DATE OF INCORPORATION:____________________________________________ 

8. NUMBER OF MEMBERS IN GOOD STANDING:________________________________________ 

9. PRESIDENT/CHAIRPERSON:________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _______________ PHONE: __ 

10. RAFFLE MANAGER:________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS:_________________________________________________________________________  

PHONE:______________________Email:________________________________________________ 

11. DESIGNATED MEMBER(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR CONDUCT & OPERATION OF RAFFLE: 

NAME:_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS:_____________________________________PHONE:_____________________________ 

NAME:_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS:_____________________________________PHONE:_____________________________ 

(ATTACHED ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY) 

10-11-2020

Peoples Animal Welfare Society - PAWS of Tinley Park

8301 W 191st Street Tinley Park IL 60487

PO Box 542 Tinley Park IL 60477

mailed to people on our mailing list, drawn at physical location

40+ years

Tinley Park, IL

200+

Vicki Dean

✔

Page | 26AGENDA - 10/20/2020, A... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



R A F F L E  A P P L I C A T I O N  | 2 
 

RAFFLE INFORMATION 

12. DATE(S) FOR RAFFLE TICKET SALES (INCLUDE DAYS OF THE WEEK) 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

13. LOCATION OF TICKET SALES: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

14. LOCATION FOR DETERMINING WINNERS: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

15. DATE(S) FOR DETERMINING WINNERS: (INCLUDE DAYS OF THE WEEK) 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

16. TOTAL RETAIL VALUE OF ALL PRIZES:  $___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                          (MAXIMUM PRIZE AMOUNT $250,000) 
 

17. MAXIMUM RETAIL VALUE OF EACH PRIZE: $___________________________________ 

18. MAXIMUM PRICE CHARGED OF EACH TICKET(CHANCE) SOLD  $____________________ 

19. § 132.38 FIDELITY BOND REQUIRED 
 

All operations of and the conduct of raffles as provided for in this subchapter shall be under the 
supervision of a single manager designated by the organization. Such manager shall give a 
fidelity bond in the sum of $165,000 or two times the aggregate value of prizes, whichever is less, 
in favor of the licensee conditioned upon his honesty in the performance of his duties. The bond 
shall provide that notice shall be given in writing to the Village of Tinley Park not less than 30 
days prior to cancellation. Bonds as provided for in this section may be waived provided the 
license issued for such raffle shall contain a waiver provision and shall be approved only by 
unanimous vote of the members of the licensed organization. 
 

FIDELTITY BOND _______ WAIVER OF BOND STATEMENT BY ORGANIZATION_______ 
 

“The undersigned attest that the above named organization is an organized not-for-profit under the law of 
the State of Illinois and has been continuously in existence for five (5) years, preceding date of this application, 
and that during this entire five (5) year period preceding date of application, it has maintained a bona fide 
membership actively engaged in carrying out its objections.  The undersigned do hereby state under penalties 
of perjury that all statements in the foregoing application are true and correct; that the officers, operators 
and workers of the game are bona fide members of the sponsoring organization and are all of good moral 
character and have not been convicted of a felony; that if a license is granted hereunder, the undersigned will 
be responsible for the conduct of the games in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of 
Illinois and this jurisdiction governing the conduct of such games.” 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION:_________________________________________________________ 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:____________________________________________________________ 

We were already approved but I would like to change the dates so that the raffle tickets will be mailed  around Oct 16th and drawn on December 13th, 2020

they tickets will be mailed to members and others on our mailing list

8301 W 191st St Tinley Park

Sunday, December 13th, 2020

1850

1000, 500, 250,100

5.00 each ticket

Peoples Animal Welfare Society

Vicki Dean

✔

Page | 27AGENDA - 10/20/2020, A... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...







Date: September 22, 2020

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Kelly Mulqueeny, Street Superintendent

Subject: Service Contract Award-Renewal Christmas Decorations (Year 3 of 3)
_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented for October 20th, 2020 Committee of the Whole and Board Meeting agenda for 
consideration and possible action:
Scope of Work:
The service contract is a renewal for the following general services during the holiday season:

 Installation, maintenance, removal, packaging and transport of holiday decorations. 
 Purchase of additional holiday ornaments and decorations as needed.

The downtown area sites and decorations will include:
 Oak Park Ave. Train Station- decorations on building and platform.
 Zabrocki Plaza- 30’ Christmas tree and lights, pre-lit trees.
 Oak Park Ave. & Hickory St.- Decorate one evergreen tree.
 Vogt Plaza- Pre-lit trees.
 80th Ave. Train Station- pre-lit trees and garland on buildings.
 Street light poles- trumpet decoration installation (provided by VoTP).

Description: 
Public works is recommending that we extend our current contract for an additional year to the capable 
contractor to who has coordinated and provide seasonal holiday decoration services for the past 2 
years. The contract has the option of 2 (two) - 1 (one) year renewals.  This will be the third and final 
year for this contract.  The past year B&B Holiday decorating has proven to be a professional, reliable 
contractor with reasonable rates.

Budget / Finance: Funding is budgeted in the FY21 Budget.

Budget Available $35,000.00
Year 3 of 3, contract $32,830.32
Difference (under budget) $2,169.68

Staff Direction Request:
1. Approve renewing the service contract for the FY2021 Christmas Decoration Contract with 

B&B Holiday Decorating of Des Plaines, IL in the amount of $32,830.32.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 30AGENDA - 10/20/2020, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

  
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION 
NO. 2020-R-103 

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR 2020 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS FOR 
DOWNTOWN TINLEY IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK –  

B & B HOLIDAY DECORATING, LLC 
 

 
 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
CYNTHIA A. BERG 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 

DIANE M. GALANTE 
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
Board of Trustees 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 
  

Page | 31AGENDA - 10/20/2020, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-103 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SERVICE CONTRACT FOR 2020 CHRISTMAS 
DECORATIONS FOR DOWNTOWN TINLEY IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK –  

B & B HOLIDAY DECORATING, LLC     

WHEREAS,  the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into a Service Contract with B & B Holiday Decorating, LLC, a true and 

correct copy of such Contract being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Service Contract 

be entered into by the Village of Tinley Park;  

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein. 

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Contract” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Service Contract to be substantially in the 

form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1, subject to review and revision as to form by the 

Village Attorney. 

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid Service 

Contract. 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED this 20th day of October, 2020, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:   

NAYS:   

ABSENT:   

APPROVED this 20th day of October, 2020, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park. 
 
                                                          

   Village President 
ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
     Village Clerk 

Page | 32AGENDA - 10/20/2020, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 

COUNTY OF WILL  ) 

 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

      I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and Will 

and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2020-R-103, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR 2020 

CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS FOR DOWNTOWN TINLEY IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 

PARK – B & B HOLIDAY DECORATING, LLC.,” which was adopted by the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on October 20, 2020.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 20th day of October, 2020. 

 

____________________________________ 
       KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK  
 

Page | 34AGENDA - 10/20/2020, C... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ap_ff

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

81020 8/10/2020 004646  HOME DEPOT WM12186511 ROLLING 56 IN. 23-DRAWER TOOL CHEST
36-00-000-74183 1,089.11

Total : 1,089.11

83020 8/30/2020 000114  AMAZON COM D01-6887280-2454637 PRIME MEMBERSHIP FEE
36-00-000-72720 119.00

Total : 119.00

Bank total : 1,208.112 Vouchers for bank code : ap_ff

1Page:

Page | 35AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189129 9/28/2020 019603  AWADALLAH, ASHRAF Ref001396288 UB Refund Cst #00510820; rfnd on acct
60-00-000-20599 214.48

Total : 214.48

189131 10/2/2020 002628  AMERICAN WATER 093020 SEP'20 SEWER TREATMENT BROOKSIDE AND REL
64-00-000-73225 46,396.80

Total : 46,396.80

189132 10/2/2020 002628  AMERICAN WATER 4000199510 FLAT  MONTHLY FEE SEP'20
64-00-000-73225 455.67

Total : 455.67

189133 10/2/2020 015032  ANALYTICAL TECHNOLOGY, INC 430027 POST 2 FLOWCELL
60-00-000-72528 20.00VTP-018034
63-00-000-72528 20.00VTP-018034
60-00-000-72528 35.00VTP-018034
63-00-000-72528 35.00VTP-018034
60-00-000-72528 375.00VTP-018034
63-00-000-72528 375.00VTP-018034
60-00-000-72528 7.31
63-00-000-72528 7.30

Total : 874.61

189134 10/2/2020 018237  ARCTIC GLACIER U.S.A.INC. 3052026903 ICE AT TOWER
01-19-000-72220 224.40

Total : 224.40

189135 10/2/2020 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P31460010 BATTERIES
14-00-000-72550 140.00
BATTERIESP31600557
14-00-000-72550 287.80

Total : 427.80

189136 10/2/2020 018807  BAXTER & WOODMAN INC 0216386 180829.20 PHASE1-GIS UPDATE
60-00-000-75813 4,383.75
63-00-000-75813 4,383.75
64-00-000-75813 3,757.50

2Page:

Page | 36AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189136 10/2/2020 (Continued)018807  BAXTER & WOODMAN INC
190816.40 LAGRANGE RD UTILITY IMPROVEMEN0216387
62-00-000-72840 14,766.25

Total : 27,291.25

189137 10/2/2020 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV200154 REMOVAL OF SPOILS FROM RECYCLING BINS
60-00-000-73681 374.85
63-00-000-73681 41.65
64-00-000-73681 178.50
01-26-023-72890 255.00
HAULING SWEEPINGS FROM HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL200155
60-00-000-73681 198.45
63-00-000-73681 22.05
64-00-000-73681 94.05
01-26-023-72890 135.45
HAULING STONE FROM HANSON THORNTON200156
60-00-000-73860 151.20
63-00-000-73860 16.80
64-00-000-73860 72.00
70-00-000-73860 40.00
01-26-023-73860 120.00

Total : 1,700.00

189138 10/2/2020 002923  BLACK DIRT INC. 062020-360 BLACK DIRT
01-26-023-73680 240.00

Total : 240.00

189139 10/2/2020 003148  BREMEN ANIMAL HOSPITAL, LTD 77215 HEARTGARD, RIMADYL, DASUQUIN
01-17-220-72240 210.00

Total : 210.00

189140 10/2/2020 003504  C & M PIPE & SUPPLY CO., INC 14570 TAR STRIP
01-26-023-73790 220.00

Total : 220.00

189141 10/2/2020 019607  CAPONIGRO, MICHAEL 092920 SOLD CAR THEY WILL NOT REPLACE
06-00-000-79005 25.00

3Page:

Page | 37AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 25.00189141 10/2/2020 019607 019607  CAPONIGRO, MICHAEL

189142 10/2/2020 019611  CARACOZZA, DENNIS & NICHOLAS Ref001396547 UB Refund Cst #00500512
60-00-000-20599 64.27

Total : 64.27

189143 10/2/2020 003396  CASE LOTS INC 7015 MASKS
01-26-025-73870 155.60
TOILET PAPER AND PAPER TOWEL8932
01-26-025-73580 107.70

Total : 263.30

189144 10/2/2020 003406  CDS OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES INV1332835 ARBITRATOR BAT2400
01-17-220-72530 810.00VTP-018047

Total : 810.00

189145 10/2/2020 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC 1620560 PLANTRONICS ADAPTER
01-21-210-72550 361.02

Total : 361.02

189146 10/2/2020 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUNDS LLC 1-0163082 BRAKE PARTS FOR SUV'S
01-17-205-72540 854.12VTP-018056

Total : 854.12

189147 10/2/2020 003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG 160172 01.R160373.0003C LIGHTING PHASE 4
30-00-000-75500 5,571.00
01.R160373.00002 INTERIM VILLAGE ENGINEE160173
64-00-000-72840 207.00
01.R160373.00018 METRA WARMING STATION160174
27-00-000-75302 150.45
01.R160373.C0020 POST 7 FORCE MAIN LININ160175
61-00-000-75305 3,449.00
01.R160373.00022 DRY UTILITY RELOCATION160176
27-00-000-72840 10,992.00
01.R160373.00022 DRY UTILITY RELOCATION160515
27-00-000-72840 9,127.75

Total : 29,497.20

4Page:

Page | 38AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189148 10/2/2020 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810265348 ACCT#8771401810265348 FD#1 9/22-10/21/20
01-19-000-72517 87.48
ACCT#8771401810316240 7850 183RD ST 9/218771401810316240
01-17-205-72517 54.25
ACCT#8771401810784702 FD#2 9/20-10/19/208771401810784702
01-19-000-72517 81.17

Total : 222.90

189149 10/2/2020 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 0021100130 ACCT#0021100130 RT/23 17529 66TH AV 8/19
01-26-025-72510 39.31
ACCT#0052035006 6720 SOUTH ST 8/19-9/18/0052035006
01-26-023-72510 1,175.81
ACCT#0363058226 TFLT 9340 W 179TH ST 8/20363058226
01-26-024-72510 59.61
ACCT#0369095018 6761 NORTH ST LOT N 8/190369095018
01-26-024-72510 25.95
ACCT#0510919106 6750 SOUTH ST 8/19-9/18/0519019106
12-00-000-72510 5.57
ACCT#0522112018 RT/25 PARKING LOT1704BOP0522112018
01-26-024-72510 32.33
ACCT#1222218001 1E OPA S NORTH ST 8/19-91222218001
70-00-000-72510 197.69
ACCT#1224165129 7053 W.183RD ST 8/19-9/11224165129
01-26-024-72510 98.66
ACCT#2587063010 17311 OPA 8/19-9/18/202587063010
12-00-000-72510 19.37
ACCT#2761036017 8317 AMBERLY CT 8/20-9/22761036017
01-26-024-72510 41.92
ACCT#3784064010 16301 CENTRAL AV 8/19-9/3784064010
60-00-000-72510 25.05
63-00-000-72510 25.05
ACCT#4329016037 17238 OPA 8/19-9/18/204329016037
12-00-000-72510 25.20
ACCT#7063131025 7813 174TH ST 8/20-9/21/7063131025
64-00-000-72510 40.10
ACCT#7090006006 PARKING LOT 17231 OPA 8/7090006006
12-00-000-72510 19.37

5Page:

Page | 39AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189149 10/2/2020 (Continued)013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON
ACCT#7398024011 7000 W 183RD ST 8/19-9/17398024011
01-26-024-72510 62.99

Total : 1,893.98

189150 10/2/2020 018311  CONNECTION 70401490 10DISPLAY PORT ADPT AND AUDIO CABLE
01-17-225-72565 22.32
MULTIPRO PRNT CABLE DRAWER 10F70403583
60-00-000-74128 11.63
SWITCH 8PORT GIG WEBSMART70423953
30-00-000-74604 153.54

Total : 187.49

189151 10/2/2020 012522  CONNEY SAFETY PRODUCTS, LLC 05907586 MEDIPROXEN AND LORADAMED TABLETS
01-21-210-73110 83.86

Total : 83.86

189152 10/2/2020 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 66039006 LEGEND LANDSCAPER MIX
01-26-023-73680 90.00
CONSERV BOW RAKE66039025
01-26-023-73680 46.58

Total : 136.58

189153 10/2/2020 003248  COOK COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS 2268312020 RECORDED DEEDS
01-14-000-72355 580.00

Total : 580.00

189154 10/2/2020 018234  CORE & MAIN LP N001243 BLADE AND BRS BUSHNG
60-00-000-73630 231.21
63-00-000-73630 25.69
64-00-000-73630 110.10
CREDIT FOR INV N001243 BLADEN044167
60-00-000-73630 -173.25
63-00-000-73630 -19.25
64-00-000-73630 -82.50

Total : 92.00

6Page:

Page | 40AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189155 10/2/2020 015820  CREATIVE BRICK & CONCRETE 715710 VETERANS BRICK REPLACEMENT
33-00-000-75610 22.33

Total : 22.33

189156 10/2/2020 003635  CROSSMARK PRINTING, INC 80177 FOOD ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORTS
01-33-300-72310 128.84

Total : 128.84

189157 10/2/2020 019276  DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP INC 103074 APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION
30-00-000-73681 1,240.00VTP-017817

Total : 1,240.00

189158 10/2/2020 003834  DRIVERS LICENSE GUIDE COMPANY 201065 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL THRU 12/2021
01-17-225-73590 82.50

Total : 82.50

189159 10/2/2020 003770  DUSTCATCHERS INC 7497 MATS-PD
01-26-025-72790 85.41
MATS - PD75140
01-26-025-72790 85.41
MATS-PW GARAGE76231
01-26-025-72790 99.08

Total : 269.90

189160 10/2/2020 004107  EAGLE ENGRAVING 2020-3906 FIREGROUND ID TAG
01-19-000-73845 49.80

Total : 49.80

189161 10/2/2020 014047  FAMILY HYUNDAI 092420 4TH YEAR INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79126 11,682.87

Total : 11,682.87

189162 10/2/2020 018255  FCA REALTY LLC 092420 4TH INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79143 308,944.00

Total : 308,944.00

189163 10/2/2020 012484  FERGUSON FACILITIES #3400 0103276 DISINFECTION WIPES
01-19-000-73580 131.36

7Page:

Page | 41AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 131.36189163 10/2/2020 012484 012484  FERGUSON FACILITIES #3400

189164 10/2/2020 015702  FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE 092420 17TH SEMI ANNUAL INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79133 74,316.86

Total : 74,316.86

189165 10/2/2020 012941  FMP 52-467437 CV AXLE SHAFT
01-26-024-72540 108.78

Total : 108.78

189166 10/2/2020 011611  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO. IN00383575 RADIO MAINTENANCE, TRANSFORMER RECEPTACL
14-00-000-72550 342.00
RADIO MAINTENANCE AND 9TH EDITION CPU BOIN00383577
14-00-000-72550 937.50

Total : 1,279.50

189167 10/2/2020 018757  GAME TIME REPAIR 3224 MICROSOFT SURFACE PRO 6 LCD SCREEN REPLA
01-16-000-72565 225.00

Total : 225.00

189168 10/2/2020 019349  GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS PINV1977741 HIGHLIGHTERS
01-19-000-73110 17.70
OFFICE SUPPLIESPINV1979832
01-19-000-73110 61.28

Total : 78.98

189169 10/2/2020 019609  GIS PLANNING INC 2120720238 ZOOM PROSPECTOR ENTERPRISE P.CORDERO 9/2
84-00-000-20432 3,450.00

Total : 3,450.00

189170 10/2/2020 004438  GRAINGER 9653557539 MARKER PAINT AND LUBRICANT
60-00-000-73620 93.39
63-00-000-73620 93.39
64-00-000-73620 80.06
01-26-025-73870 94.00
RECEPTACLE CADDY9653601105
01-26-025-73580 45.00
RUBBERBANDS9655370451

8Page:

Page | 42AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189170 10/2/2020 (Continued)004438  GRAINGER
01-26-025-73580 24.25
HEX KEY SET9655934629
01-26-023-73840 46.74
SPRAYER9656545754
01-26-025-73580 356.10
RETURNED VALVES9657154051
60-00-000-73630 -219.62
63-00-000-73630 -24.40
64-00-000-73630 -104.58
USB CABLE9659744578
60-00-000-72528 2.10
63-00-000-72528 2.10

Total : 488.53

189171 10/2/2020 012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS 5977593090520 WATER
01-21-210-73110 129.17

Total : 129.17

189172 10/2/2020 019612  HOLIDAY INN Ref001396565 Refund receipt #: 1570
01-00-000-20100 135.00

Total : 135.00

189173 10/2/2020 012328  HOMER INDUSTRIES S152581 DROP CHARGE-LOGS,BRUSH,CHIPS
01-26-023-72890 150.00

Total : 150.00

189174 10/2/2020 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 7135415 SWEEPING
01-26-023-72890 3,174.00

Total : 3,174.00

189175 10/2/2020 015497  ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 091020 LICENSE PLATESFOR 2014 TAURUS AND 2012 T
01-17-205-72860 302.00

Total : 302.00

189176 10/2/2020 005186  INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM 33643165 BATTERY
01-26-023-72540 359.85

9Page:

Page | 43AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 359.85189176 10/2/2020 005186 005186  INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM

189177 10/2/2020 005251  J AND R SALES AND SERVICE INC. 0335921 2 EXTENDING POLE SAWS
01-26-023-73410 535.96VTP-017981
GUIDE BAR AND CHAIN PICCO MICRO0335921.
01-26-023-73870 42.32
CHAIN RAPID SUPER,CHAIN PICCO MICRO,STIH0336809
01-26-023-73870 167.60

Total : 745.88

189178 10/2/2020 018935  JX ENTERPRISES INC 22119689P BLADE WIPER
01-26-023-72530 141.90

Total : 141.90

189179 10/2/2020 014190  LEHIGH HANSON 5845416 STONE
70-00-000-73860 86.23
01-26-023-73860 258.69
60-00-000-73860 325.95
63-00-000-73860 36.22
64-00-000-73860 155.21

Total : 862.30

189180 10/2/2020 014402  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MNGMNT 1038013-20200831 AUG'20 1038013 8/1/20-8/31/20
01-17-225-72852 230.85

Total : 230.85

189181 10/2/2020 019023  M & F SERVICES ONE INC 2234 RPZ ON BUILDING DEPARTMENT BOILER FEED
01-26-025-72530 95.20

Total : 95.20

189182 10/2/2020 003440  M. COOPER WINSUPPLY CO. 010292 01 BLUE MAGIC THRD,BALL VALVE,PXMPT ADPT
60-00-000-73630 67.89
63-00-000-73630 7.54
64-00-000-73630 32.33
TUBE AND WHEEL CUTTER010707 01
60-00-000-73410 151.82
63-00-000-73410 16.87
64-00-000-73410 72.29

10Page:

Page | 44AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 348.74189182 10/2/2020 003440 003440  M. COOPER WINSUPPLY CO.

189183 10/2/2020 012631  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY, LTD. 15030-93234 OIL FILTER AND WHEEL NUT
01-17-205-72540 72.63

Total : 72.63

189184 10/2/2020 006074  MENARDS 92907 PRO MARKING PAINT PINK & BOLTS
60-00-000-73410 17.17
63-00-000-73410 1.91
64-00-000-73410 8.18
FABRIC & MULCH92931
01-26-025-73680 46.88
AUTO LEVEL LASER & 3M QL RES OV/AG/P10092932
01-26-025-73410 79.43
KOM CONTS MAG92999
01-26-023-73870 19.99
BACKPACK SPRAYER93054
01-26-025-73580 319.98
MASK,REPLACEMENT CARTRIDGE,GREEN CHALK,M93254
01-26-025-72779 59.40
REPAIR SUPPLIES FOR BATHROOM93284
60-00-000-72520 136.44
63-00-000-72520 136.43
ENDCUT BLD SET TITANIUM & BLADE93310
01-26-025-73410 39.98
COUPLERS & LANDSCAPE BLOCK93336
01-26-023-73870 22.68
PAPER TOWEL,TIDE93367
01-26-025-73580 96.74
GROMMET,DRILL BIT,SAW,HOOKS93371
01-26-025-73410 26.14
SG SEAM REPAIR93382
01-26-025-72520 2.29
 FOUNDATIONS 2H 4" LAV CH93390
60-00-000-72520 -19.50
63-00-000-72520 -19.50
STEEL WOOL AND ACRYL NO POP 4" LAV CH93391

11Page:

Page | 45AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189184 10/2/2020 (Continued)006074  MENARDS
60-00-000-72520 10.35
63-00-000-72520 10.35
LOC INSTANT MIX,DRILL BIT, DRIVE BIT SET93434
01-26-025-72520 24.74
CONCRETE MIX AND REBAR93442
01-26-023-73770 47.06
EPOXY AND INSTANT MIX93511
01-26-025-73410 10.15

Total : 1,077.29

189185 10/2/2020 014369  MIDWEST OFFICE INTERIORS 261798 SAFETY CENTER STACK-ONS
01-26-025-74110 2,716.63VTP-017963

Total : 2,716.63

189186 10/2/2020 015761  MOKENA FIRE PROTECTION DIST. 203 PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE LABOR
01-19-000-72540 743.95

Total : 743.95

189187 10/2/2020 005856  MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT,INC. R78286 REPLACE HYDRAULIC PUMP ASSEMBLY UNIT 57
01-26-023-72540 4,687.79VTP-018059

Total : 4,687.79

189188 10/2/2020 019610  MORGAN & SHERIN HANNA, NABIL Ref001396545 UB Refund Cst #00510259 rfnd overpmt
60-00-000-20599 449.21

Total : 449.21

189189 10/2/2020 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 40669252001 FLAT WASHER AND CAPSCREWS
60-00-000-73840 146.65
63-00-000-73840 48.88
64-00-000-73840 83.80
STREET SIGNS4119652001
01-26-023-73830 198.66
SUPPLIES FOR STREET4125608001
01-26-023-72540 263.77

Total : 741.76

12Page:

Page | 46AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189190 10/2/2020 016827  MUNICIPAL ELECTRONICS DIV, LLC 067282 RADARS
01-17-220-72530 990.00

Total : 990.00

189191 10/2/2020 010810  MUNICIPAL SERV. CONSULTING INC TPCS-08-20 REPAIR/UPDATE RADIO AND NETWORK SYSTEMS
11-00-000-74150 12,232.50

Total : 12,232.50

189192 10/2/2020 016503  NFPA 7806032X NFPA SUBSCRIPTION RENWAL D.RIORDAN
01-19-020-72720 175.00
FPW CAMPAIGN POSTER,NEWSLETTER, AND ACTI7810129Y
01-19-020-73605 86.90

Total : 261.90

189193 10/2/2020 006221  NORTHERN SAFETY CO. INC. 904137751 GOATSKIN DRIVERS GLOVE AND SAFETY LENS
60-00-000-73845 66.74
63-00-000-73845 7.42
64-00-000-73845 31.78
01-26-023-73845 105.94
01-26-024-73845 52.96

Total : 264.84

189194 10/2/2020 010135  ONSITE COMMUNICATIONS USA, INC 50549 MOTOROLA #PMMN4021 COMLETE HT1250
01-17-205-72550 3,122.00VTP-018007

Total : 3,122.00

189195 10/2/2020 012790  P.T. FERRO CONSTRUCTION COMPAN 46610 18-R0455.03 TIF 183RD ST MULTI USE PATH/
30-00-000-75200 40,440.00
18-R0455.03 TIF 183RD ST & OPA MULTI USE46610.
30-00-000-75200 50,326.50

Total : 90,766.50

189196 10/2/2020 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 036709/2 ACCT#9404 EXCHANGE LP ANK BR
01-19-000-73540 19.99
ACCT#009404 BLEACH, SOAP, WATER,COFFEE,C064263
01-19-000-72220 283.77
01-19-000-73410 97.94

13Page:

Page | 47AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189196 10/2/2020 (Continued)006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE
01-19-000-73580 1,204.47
ACCT#9404 EXCHANGE LP TANK BR064326/1
01-19-000-73540 39.98
SPRYPNT, SAW, BRACE, ALM CLOVER064327/1
60-00-000-72520 21.18
63-00-000-72520 21.17
SAW BLADE & CHISEL064328/1
01-26-023-73870 25.58
FILR&SELR SLC GRY064333/1
01-26-023-73870 5.27
HAMMER, LUBE, STOP NUTS064341/1
01-26-023-73840 27.57
THREAD SEAL TAPE & INFLATOR GUN064345/1
01-26-025-72520 19.81
ACCT#9404 PICTURE HANGER,TAPE, AND FASTE064358/1
01-19-000-72524 16.74
ACCT#9404 COFFEE AND TRUCK WASH64309/1
01-19-000-72220 360.85
01-19-000-73580 52.99

Total : 2,197.31

189197 10/2/2020 017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY 132272 4130.003 FOIA SERVICES THRU 8/31/20
01-14-000-72850 2,905.50
4130.0022 SERVICES FOR NEW BREMEN TIF TH132273
27-00-000-72850 1,092.00
4130.0031 SERVICES FOR TP EMINENT DOMAIN132274
27-00-000-72850 2,562.98
MATTER#4130.0037 SVC FOR BRIXMOOR DEDEVE132276
01-14-000-72850 7,156.50
MATTER#4130.0038 TINLEY OPEN MEETINGS AC132277
01-14-000-72850 624.00

Total : 14,340.98

189198 10/2/2020 015491  PIZZO & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 23772 FAIRFILED GLEN POND RESTORATION
30-00-000-73681 2,075.15VTP-017818

14Page:

Page | 48AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 2,075.15189198 10/2/2020 015491 015491  PIZZO & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

189199 10/2/2020 019606  POMPER, MARCIE 093020 RETURNING PARKING PLACARDS DUE TO COVID
70-00-000-79000 285.00

Total : 285.00

189200 10/2/2020 006780  POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC 310170836 TIRES
01-26-023-72540 297.00
(4) P245/60 HR18 TIRES UNIT 5S410804296
01-17-205-73560 457.84VTP-018058

Total : 754.84

189201 10/2/2020 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 092920 FIRST CLASS STAMPS FOR FIRE PREVENTION M
01-19-020-72110 110.00

Total : 110.00

189202 10/2/2020 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 092920. FIRST CLASS STAMPS FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION
01-19-000-72110 55.00

Total : 55.00

189203 10/2/2020 019583  PRECISE MRM LLC 200-1027412 GROUND/ AIR TEMP SENSOR FOR PLOW TRUCKS
30-00-000-75421 8,908.00VTP-018038

Total : 8,908.00

189204 10/2/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 19050107 18-R0455.034 TIF CONSTR PROJ 183RD ST. M
30-00-000-75200 8,492.90
11-320 BLVD AT CENTRAL STATION -SOUTH ST20090324
27-00-000-72840 1,494.00
15-530 TP BROOKSIDE MEADOWS,PHASE 2,201520090325
01-14-000-72840 94.00
18-R0455.034 TIF -183RD ST. MULTI USE PA20090326
30-00-000-75200 6,271.00
18-R0455.034 TIF PROJECT 183RD ST MULTI20090326.
30-00-000-75200 444.50
20-R0005.014 TP FY'20 PMP RESURFACING PR20090327
06-00-000-72840 44,546.50
20-R0499 COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM20090373
65-00-000-72840 7,908.00

15Page:

Page | 49AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189204 10/2/2020 (Continued)006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD.
20-R0671 TP PLAT OF ANNEXATION HARLEM AV20090390
01-33-310-72840 1,000.00

Total : 70,250.90

189205 10/2/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 20090176 16-R0402 175TH ST/RIDGELAND AVE/OAK FORE
33-00-000-75806 10,649.21

Total : 10,649.21

189206 10/2/2020 013234  ROMEOVILLE FIRE ACADEMY 2020-255 ROPE OPERATION COURSE
01-19-000-72145 900.00VTP-017936

Total : 900.00

189207 10/2/2020 007091  SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC. 84044320 WASHER SOLVENT
60-00-000-72750 22.66
63-00-000-72750 22.65
64-00-000-72750 19.42
01-26-023-72750 64.73
01-26-024-72750 64.73
01-17-205-72750 97.10
01-33-300-72540 32.36

Total : 323.65

189208 10/2/2020 018104  SBA STEEL,LLC IN14054716 TOWER SITE RENT #IL46494-A-03 OCTOBER '2
60-00-000-72631 191.44
63-00-000-72631 191.44
64-00-000-72631 191.44
01-17-205-72631 382.90
01-19-000-72631 319.07

Total : 1,276.29

189209 10/2/2020 019605  SCHMECKPEPER, JANET 092320 REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMBROIDERY ON SHIRTS
01-17-205-73610 88.00

Total : 88.00

189210 10/2/2020 019209  SEWER ASSESSMENT SERVICES, LLC 092120 SMOKE TESTING
61-00-000-75305 34,133.74VTP-017735

16Page:

Page | 50AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 34,133.74189210 10/2/2020 019209 019209  SEWER ASSESSMENT SERVICES, LLC

189211 10/2/2020 007109  SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS 0461325-IN GUN EVIDENCE BOXES 14 3/4 INCH X ~
01-17-225-73550 339.23VTP-018031

Total : 339.23

189212 10/2/2020 007224  STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY P24737 HOSE END AND MENDER
01-26-023-72530 109.73

Total : 109.73

189213 10/2/2020 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY 092420 9TH YEAR INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79132 891.00

Total : 891.00

189214 10/2/2020 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S006712623.002 SWITCHES, SCREWDRIVER
63-00-000-72528 34.34
60-00-000-72528 34.35

Total : 68.69

189215 10/2/2020 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 512203 VALVE ASY
01-17-205-72540 31.86

Total : 31.86

189216 10/2/2020 011248  TEMPERATURE EQUIPMENT CORP. 092420 20TH AND FINAL INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79129 102,005.00

Total : 102,005.00

189217 10/2/2020 004400  THE GORMAN GROUP, LTD. 091020 NEC HARLEM & VOLLMER, APPRAISAL
01-14-000-72790 2,500.00

Total : 2,500.00

189218 10/2/2020 019560  THE STANDARD COMPANIES 134884 3M NEUTRAL CLEANER
01-26-025-73580 279.75

Total : 279.75

189219 10/2/2020 019006  TRAFFIC CONTROL COMPANY 18807 PAVEMENT STRIPING
01-26-023-75802 3,023.48VTP-017855

17Page:

Page | 51AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 3,023.48189219 10/2/2020 019006 019006  TRAFFIC CONTROL COMPANY

189220 10/2/2020 013200  TRIBUNE PUBLISHING COMPANY 023178551000 CLASSIFIED POSTINGS
01-14-000-72330 3,184.62
01-33-310-72330 653.51

Total : 3,838.13

189221 10/2/2020 008040  UNDERGROUND PIPE & VALVE CO 045103 CLAMPS
60-00-000-73630 288.54VTP-018053
63-00-000-73630 32.06VTP-018053
64-00-000-73630 137.40VTP-018053
60-00-000-73630 428.40VTP-018053
63-00-000-73630 47.60VTP-018053
64-00-000-73630 204.00VTP-018053
60-00-000-73630 212.71VTP-018053
63-00-000-73630 23.63VTP-018053
64-00-000-73630 101.29VTP-018053
GASKETS045128
60-00-000-73630 126.00
63-00-000-73630 14.00
64-00-000-73630 60.00
O-RING045243
60-00-000-73630 103.32
63-00-000-73630 11.48
64-00-000-73630 49.20

Total : 1,839.63

189222 10/2/2020 008057  USA BLUE BOOK 360580 TRACING DYE LIQUID
60-00-000-73550 177.33
63-00-000-73550 177.33
64-00-000-73550 152.00

Total : 506.66

189223 10/2/2020 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9863382103 ACCT#442345192-00001 WATER REPEATER STAT
60-00-000-72127 21.29
63-00-000-72127 21.29
64-00-000-72127 18.26

18Page:

Page | 52AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 60.84189223 10/2/2020 011416 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS

189224 10/2/2020 019608  VIEYRA, SYLVIA 093020 STICKER PURCHASED AND NO LONGER NEEDED
06-00-000-79005 25.00

Total : 25.00

189225 10/2/2020 014938  VILLAGE OF LANSING 092420 20TH AND FINAL INCENTIVE
01-97-000-79129 102,005.00

Total : 102,005.00

189226 10/2/2020 006429  VILLAGE OF ORLAND HILLS 092420 15TH IGA PAYMENT NOV'19-JUN'20
01-97-000-79125 54,811.27

Total : 54,811.27

189227 10/2/2020 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS4772684-0 VENDING MACHINE GOODS
01-14-000-73115 28.50

Total : 28.50

189228 10/2/2020 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1339872 DIESEL FUEL USED 9/5/20-9/24/20
01-19-000-73545 865.69
60-00-000-73545 189.91
63-00-000-73545 47.48
64-00-000-73545 101.74
01-26-023-73545 1,084.46
01-26-024-73545 68.32
01-14-000-73531 301.60

Total : 2,659.20

Bank total : 1,061,998.9199 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

19Page:

Page | 53AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2780 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 251.24

Total : 251.24

2781 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-2 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 221.52

Total : 221.52

2782 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-3 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 298.54

Total : 298.54

2783 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-4 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 251.24

Total : 251.24

2784 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-5 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 298.54

Total : 298.54

2785 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-6 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82

Total : 268.82

2786 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-7 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82

Total : 268.82

2787 9/28/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-8 PAYEE-PAMELA YOUNKER
01-14-000-72542 1,113.02

Total : 1,113.02

2788 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200505W003 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 643.50

Total : 643.50

2789 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP190326W026 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 1,150.50

20Page:

Page | 54AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 1,150.502789 9/29/2020 018837 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP

2790 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP190514W019 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 19.50

Total : 19.50

2791 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP191105W030 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 877.50

Total : 877.50

2792 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200219W023 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 58.50

Total : 58.50

2793 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200605W013 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 1,595.50

Total : 1,595.50

2794 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200528W014 PAYEE-PREMIER ORTHOPAEDIC
01-14-000-72542 82.69

Total : 82.69

2795 9/29/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200528W014-2 PAYEE-PREMIER ORTHOPAEDIC
01-14-000-72542 82.69

Total : 82.69

Bank total : 7,482.1216 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

1,070,689.14Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report117

21Page:

Page | 55AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

 9:51:29AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

22Page:

Page | 56AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

10:41:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189229 10/2/2020 003606  CHICAGO SOUTHLAND CONV. V B 0920 AUG LIAB SEPT COLL HOTEL ACCOMMODATION
12-00-000-79107 12,555.13

Total : 12,555.13

189230 10/2/2020 017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY 132271 4130.0001 VILLAGE GENERAL MATTERS SVC TH
01-14-000-72850 37,238.00

Total : 37,238.00

189231 10/2/2020 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1339871 N.L. GAS USED 9/5/20-9/24/20
01-17-205-73530 8,132.80
01-19-000-73530 339.55
01-19-020-73530 65.80
01-21-000-73530 38.27
60-00-000-73530 659.04
63-00-000-73530 164.76
64-00-000-73530 353.06
01-26-023-73530 934.63
01-26-024-73530 397.14
01-33-300-73530 175.52
01-33-310-73530 16.40
01-12-000-73530 197.93
01-14-000-73531 271.93
14-00-000-73530 34.63
01-42-000-73530 225.64

Total : 12,007.10

Bank total : 61,800.233 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

61,800.23Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report3

1Page:

Page | 57AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/02/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

10:41:42AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

2Page:

Page | 58AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189238 10/9/2020 019604  911 TECH INC 1240 COPFTO:ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
01-17-220-72655 4,820.00VTP-018061

Total : 4,820.00

189239 10/9/2020 019563  AEP ENERGY INC 3013134248 ACCT#3013134248 4384028017  6815 HICKORY
01-26-024-72510 86.39
ACCT#3013134259 4623055116 19620 88TH AV3013134259
01-26-024-72510 9,846.77
08-00-000-72510 151.98

Total : 10,085.14

189240 10/9/2020 002682  AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLICATION 2105 JULY'20 S-35 FOLIO/INTERNET EDITING
01-13-000-72791 33.15
SEPTEMBER 2020 S-35 EDITING3087
01-13-000-72791 392.00

Total : 425.15

189241 10/9/2020 010026  ANDERSON PUMP SERVICE SK10920 FUEL SYSTEM TESTING
01-26-025-72530 4,144.58VTP-017997

Total : 4,144.58

189242 10/9/2020 002756  APCO INTERNATIONAL INC. 738925 GROUP MEMBERSHIP 11-25 STAFF TIER 1
01-21-210-72720 893.00

Total : 893.00

189243 10/9/2020 003359  BACKFLOW SOLUTIONS INC 4870 VTP CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL
60-00-000-72790 2,969.91

Total : 2,969.91

189244 10/9/2020 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P31742122 BATTERIES SLA12-8F
14-00-000-72550 140.00
BATTERY SLA12-8FP31757313
14-00-000-72550 140.00

Total : 280.00

189245 10/9/2020 002923  BLACK DIRT INC. 062020-422 PULVERIZED DIRT

1Page:

Page | 59AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189245 10/9/2020 (Continued)002923  BLACK DIRT INC.
01-26-023-73680 240.00

Total : 240.00

189246 10/9/2020 018420  BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC 83775990 FIRST AID KITS
01-19-000-73115 403.60

Total : 403.60

189247 10/9/2020 003396  CASE LOTS INC 108 PROTECTIVE FACE MASKS
01-26-025-73870 231.20

Total : 231.20

189248 10/9/2020 003328  CATCHING FLUIDPOWER INC F91627-001 SHORT SHANK SUCTION CPLG
60-00-000-73410 32.42
63-00-000-73410 3.60
64-00-000-73410 15.44

Total : 51.46

189249 10/9/2020 017349  CHICAGO STREET CCDD, LLC 19653 DUMP FEE
01-26-023-72890 350.00

Total : 350.00

189250 10/9/2020 018198  CHICAGOLAND INVESTIGATIVE SERV 5458 PRE EMPLOY INVESTIGATION,CONTRACTOR BACK
01-12-000-72446 350.00
30-00-000-75812 150.00
01-26-025-72790 300.00
60-00-000-72446 125.00

Total : 925.00

189251 10/9/2020 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 5033001708 MEDICINE CABINET - PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG
01-26-025-73117 165.70
MEDICINE CABINET - VH5033001727
01-26-025-73117 130.30
MEDICINE CABINET - PUMP HOUSE 15033001753
01-26-025-73117 46.41
MEDICINE CABINET - PW GARAGE5033001768
01-26-025-73117 227.27

2Page:

Page | 60AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189251 10/9/2020 (Continued)013820  CINTAS CORPORATION
MEDICINE CABINET - PUMP HOUSE 25033001788
01-26-025-73117 46.41
MEDICINE CABINET - PD5033107863
01-26-025-73117 63.11
MEDICINE CABINET - SHOOTING RANGE5033107873
01-26-025-73117 14.18

Total : 693.38

189252 10/9/2020 018475  CLARKE, KIMBERLY 100120 RETIREMENT PARTY IN CD FOR G.LODE AND J.
01-33-300-72220 494.21

Total : 494.21

189253 10/9/2020 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 2777112019 ACCT#2777112019 175TH AND SANDLEWOOD DR
01-26-023-72510 102.52
ACCT#3214011009 16853 LAKEWOOD DR 8/26-93214011009
64-00-000-72510 169.24
ACCT#6483053261 17495 S LAGRANGE RD 8/216483053261
01-26-023-72510 40.77
ACCT#8363023007 0 179TH ST & 82ND AVE 8/8363023007
63-00-000-72510 122.55
60-00-000-72510 122.55

Total : 557.63

189254 10/9/2020 018234  CORE & MAIN LP N038878 BLADES
60-00-000-73410 632.52
63-00-000-73410 70.28
64-00-000-73410 301.20

Total : 1,004.00

189255 10/9/2020 019617  CUBALCHINI, ROGER & MARY ANNE Ref001396798 UB Refund Cst #00456084 overpayment
60-00-000-20599 215.01

Total : 215.01

189256 10/9/2020 018325  DAILY SOUTHTOWN 74072186 DAILY SOUTHTOWN SUBSCRIPTION
01-14-000-72720 234.00

Total : 234.00

3Page:

Page | 61AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189257 10/9/2020 017539  DAL BIANCO ROOFING 100620 ADVISORY - NO LICENSE FEE NEEDED
01-14-000-79010 50.00

Total : 50.00

189258 10/9/2020 017603  DANDAN, RICK TARIQ 093020 SEPT'20 PLAN REVIEW FEES
01-33-300-72790 94,794.45

Total : 94,794.45

189259 10/9/2020 003770  DUSTCATCHERS INC 75864 MATS - PD
01-26-025-72790 85.41
MATS-VH76228
01-26-025-72790 65.93
MATS - PD76230
01-26-025-72790 85.41

Total : 236.75

189260 10/9/2020 004152  ECOLAB PEST ELIMINATION INC. 3234697 COCKROACH/RODENT PROGRAM
01-26-025-72790 474.44
COCKROACH/RODENT PROGRAM - TRAIN STATION3234698
01-26-025-72790 86.48

Total : 560.92

189261 10/9/2020 004087  EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS INC 2203547 GLOVES
01-19-000-73115 1,510.60

Total : 1,510.60

189262 10/9/2020 017807  EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICE INC. 7999 SERVICE ON HOSE
01-19-000-72540 327.94

Total : 327.94

189263 10/9/2020 019561  ENDLESS COMMUNICATIONS USA LLC DG-1082 TALK LTE DATA RADIO SERVICE OCT'20
01-42-000-72540 30.00

Total : 30.00

189264 10/9/2020 004176  FEDEX (FEDERAL EXPRESS) 7-137-59007 SHIPPING COSTS R.VISTO PLAT DEPARTMENT O
01-13-000-72110 45.02

Total : 45.02

4Page:

Page | 62AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189265 10/9/2020 012484  FERGUSON FACILITIES #3400 0102622-2 PURELL HAND SANTIZERS
01-26-025-73580 323.04
PURELL HAND SANITIZERS0102622-3
01-26-025-73580 161.52
PURELL HAND SANITIZERS0102622-4
01-26-025-72525 1,534.44

Total : 2,019.00

189266 10/9/2020 015058  FLEETPRIDE 60331350 AIR FILTER AND FUEL CARTRIDGE
01-26-023-72540 387.79

Total : 387.79

189267 10/9/2020 012941  FMP 52-468307 THERMOSTAT
01-26-024-72540 22.76
CABIN AIR FILTER52-468454
01-17-205-72540 8.74

Total : 31.50

189268 10/9/2020 011611  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO. IN00384788 RADIO AND TRANSCEIVER INSTALLATION
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO MAINTENANCEIN00385646
14-00-000-72750 8,481.25VTP-017869

Total : 9,490.25

189269 10/9/2020 002877  G. W. BERKHEIMER CO.,  INC. 738998 FILTERS FOR CLOCK TOWER
01-26-025-72520 55.68

Total : 55.68

189270 10/9/2020 018387  GBJ SALES, LLC 2879 WHITE RUBBERIZED COATING
01-26-023-72540 46.72
60-00-000-72540 24.53
63-00-000-72540 8.18
64-00-000-72540 14.02

Total : 93.45

189271 10/9/2020 015397  GOVTEMPSUSA LLC 3589466 9/6 AND 9/13 - P.WALLRICH
01-33-310-72790 4,378.19

5Page:

Page | 63AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 4,378.19189271 10/9/2020 015397 015397  GOVTEMPSUSA LLC

189272 10/9/2020 004438  GRAINGER 966047116 GASKET SEALANT
60-00-000-73630 185.22
64-00-000-73630 88.20
63-00-000-73630 20.58
POUROVER DECANTER9665105442
01-26-025-73115 24.40
FILE SET9665596871
01-26-023-73110 86.93
EAR PLUG DISPENSER9668887863
60-00-000-73845 20.08
63-00-000-73845 2.23
64-00-000-73845 9.56
01-26-023-73845 31.88
01-26-024-73845 15.94

Total : 485.02

189273 10/9/2020 004746  HEATHER'S HAUS FLORIST 458722 SYMPATHY FLOWERS
01-17-205-73600 75.00

Total : 75.00

189274 10/9/2020 011032  HUB INTERNATIONAL MIDWEST LTD. 2023115 4-YEAR NOTARY BOND FOR D.HULTSCH
01-15-000-72720 20.00

Total : 20.00

189275 10/9/2020 005057  ICMA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION 091420 ICMA CONFERENCE D.NIEMEYER AND P.CARR 9/
01-12-000-72170 498.00

Total : 498.00

189276 10/9/2020 004978  ILLINOIS ASSOC.OF CHF POLICE 6465 MEMBER RENEWAL S.TENCZA THRU 12/31/21
01-17-205-72720 95.00

Total : 95.00

189277 10/9/2020 015497  ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 092920 NOTARY BOND FOR D.HULTSCH
01-15-000-72720 10.00

Total : 10.00

6Page:

Page | 64AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189278 10/9/2020 004896  IMAGING OFFICE SYSTEMS INC. LAB021951 DIGITAL TO FILM
01-17-205-72345 977.28

Total : 977.28

189279 10/9/2020 004875  IRMA 093020 SEPTEMBER DEDUCTIBLE
01-14-000-72541 1,100.00
60-00-000-72541 919.70
64-00-000-72541 394.16
70-00-000-72541 2,616.04

Total : 5,029.90

189280 10/9/2020 016616  KURTZ AMBULANCE SERVICE INC. 10623 EMS AGREEMENT SEPT'20
01-21-000-72856 36,477.83

Total : 36,477.83

189281 10/9/2020 001439  M & M AUTO GLASS & UPHOL.SERV. 512161 HEATED BACKGLASS DEFROSTER REPAIR
01-17-205-72540 75.00

Total : 75.00

189282 10/9/2020 003440  M. COOPER WINSUPPLY CO. 01116701 REPAIR KIT FOR TOILET PAPER DISPENSER
01-26-025-72520 3.32

Total : 3.32

189283 10/9/2020 013969  MAP AUTOMOTIVE OF CHICAGO 40-581170 BATTERY
01-17-205-72540 345.24
BATTERY40-581171
01-26-023-72540 115.08

Total : 460.32

189284 10/9/2020 012631  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY, LTD. 15030-93450 16 XTRACLEAR
01-17-205-72540 7.20

Total : 7.20

189285 10/9/2020 005844  MCDONALD'S 093020 PRISONER MEAL SEPT'20
01-17-220-72230 99.98

Total : 99.98

189286 10/9/2020 005645  MEADE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC. 693789 TRAFFIC LIGHT MAINTENANCE, SEPT 2020

7Page:

Page | 65AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189286 10/9/2020 (Continued)005645  MEADE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC.
01-26-024-72775 495.00

Total : 495.00

189287 10/9/2020 006074  MENARDS 93678 FLEX DRIVER,DRIVE BIT,NUT DRIVER BIT, MA
60-00-000-73410 22.02
63-00-000-73410 2.45
64-00-000-73410 10.49
MARKING PAINT93796
01-26-023-73410 11.74
HUMIDIFIER93797
01-26-025-72530 36.99
SHELVES93806
01-26-025-72520 179.98
SPRINKER SUPPLIES FOR OPA TRAIN STATION93822
01-26-025-72530 35.41
SILICONE CAULK93861
01-26-025-73630 7.98
SPRINKLER SUPPLIES FOR VH93870
01-26-025-73630 20.63
RUBBER GASKET93883
60-00-000-73630 3.14
63-00-000-73630 0.35
64-00-000-73630 1.49
BASIN KIT WITH GRATE93930
01-26-023-73840 125.94
CORR TUBING SOLID93931
01-26-023-73840 4.19
WATERTITE STOWAWAY94145
01-19-000-73115 21.16

Total : 483.96

189288 10/9/2020 015386  MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC 5298 GIS STAFFING SEPT'20
01-16-000-72652 4,998.95
60-00-000-72652 3,199.33
63-00-000-72652 299.93
64-00-000-72652 1,499.69

8Page:

Page | 66AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 9,997.90189288 10/9/2020 015386 015386  MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC

189289 10/9/2020 019616  MUTING, JOSEPH 100820 REFUND OF LATE CAR STICKER FEES
06-00-000-79005 40.00

Total : 40.00

189290 10/9/2020 012301  MVP FIRE SYSTEMS,INC 13044 SERVICE FOR STANDPIPE AND TRAINING TOWER
01-19-000-72520 1,530.00

Total : 1,530.00

189291 10/9/2020 018604  NAPA MONEE 165976 HOSE END AND FITTING
01-21-000-72540 18.99

Total : 18.99

189292 10/9/2020 006197  NAT'L EMERGENCY NUMBER ASSOC. 300057938 PUBLIC SECTOR 1 J.ROMANOW
01-21-210-72720 700.00

Total : 700.00

189293 10/9/2020 015723  NICOR 01981510009 ACCT#01-98-15-1000 9 7780 W 183RD ST 8/2
01-26-025-72511 39.26
ACCT#53-46-37-1000 3 18241 S 80TH AVE 8/53463710003
01-26-025-72511 40.16
ACCT#73-67-54-1000 2 7800 183RD ST 8/25/73675410002
01-26-025-72511 563.72
ACCT#74-43-34-1000 3 3575402 7700 W 183R74433410003
01-26-025-72511 38.79
ACCT#83-52-37-1000 8 7980 183RD ST 8/25/83523710008
01-26-025-72511 133.75
ACCT#96-01-99-5852 7 7999 W TIMBER AVE 896019958527
01-26-025-72511 50.06

Total : 865.74

189294 10/9/2020 010135  ONSITE COMMUNICATIONS USA, INC 50555 QUOTE  PORTABLE RADIO& HEADSET
30-00-000-74336 2,440.00VTP-018018

Total : 2,440.00

189295 10/9/2020 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 064383/1 ACCT#891431 BATTERY AND GORILLA TAPE
60-00-000-73110 22.16

9Page:

Page | 67AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189295 10/9/2020 (Continued)006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE
63-00-000-73110 2.46
64-00-000-73110 10.55

Total : 35.17

189296 10/9/2020 019618  PETERSON, LORI Ref001396799 UB Refund Cst #00470178
60-00-000-20599 25.10

Total : 25.10

189297 10/9/2020 006499  PITNEY BOWES INC 1016521014 ACCT#0012198182 10/16-1/15/21
01-14-000-72110 150.00
PITNEY BOWES EZ SEAL BOTTLES1016554801
01-14-000-72750 38.25
60-00-000-72750 38.24

Total : 226.49

189298 10/9/2020 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 100220 OCTOBER'20 WATER BILLS
60-00-000-72110 2,016.96
64-00-000-72110 864.41

Total : 2,881.37

189299 10/9/2020 006559  PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC 99062378 INDUSTRIAL ACETYLENE
60-00-000-73730 32.04
63-00-000-73730 32.04
64-00-000-73730 27.47
01-26-023-73730 91.55
01-26-024-73730 45.78

Total : 228.88

189300 10/9/2020 013587  PROSHRED SECURITY 990067082 EXECUTIVE CONSOLES AND GALLON BIN
01-17-205-72750 160.00

Total : 160.00

189301 10/9/2020 017975  REVIZE LLC 10599 MOBILE APP SET UP AND ANNUAL MAINTENANCE
01-35-000-72790 950.00

Total : 950.00

189302 10/9/2020 015230  RIDGE LANDSCAPE SERVICES LLC 7382 SOD REPAIRS

10Page:

Page | 68AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189302 10/9/2020 (Continued)015230  RIDGE LANDSCAPE SERVICES LLC
60-00-000-72881 4,042.50
63-00-000-72881 4,042.50
64-00-000-72881 3,465.00

Total : 11,550.00

189303 10/9/2020 006974  RINGHOFER, WILLIAM 100520 HEALTH INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT PURSUANT
01-17-205-72435 593.13

Total : 593.13

189304 10/9/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 20090374 20-R0591 TP FOX COLLEGE PARKING LOT ADDI
01-14-000-72840 5,846.50

Total : 5,846.50

189305 10/9/2020 019092  RORY GROUP, LLC 3474 BUSINESS CONSULTING FEE OCT'20
01-11-000-72790 3,000.00

Total : 3,000.00

189306 10/9/2020 007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 8030084 PORTABLE TOILET FOR FIREMAN TRAINING
01-19-000-72750 158.59

Total : 158.59

189307 10/9/2020 017378  SIKICH LLP 457221 AUDIT SERVICES THRU 7/31/20 FOR FY'20 AU
01-14-000-72845 1,000.00

Total : 1,000.00

189308 10/9/2020 013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7946-39 FIELD INSPECTIONS
01-26-023-72847 912.50VTP-017834

Total : 912.50

189309 10/9/2020 019619  SPITTAL, WILLIAM Ref001396800 UB Refund Cst #00500014
60-00-000-20599 15.62

Total : 15.62

189310 10/9/2020 012238  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3456467363 PENS, CORRECTION TAPE,ENVELOPES,INK
01-17-205-73110 366.88
HP INK3456467364
01-17-205-73110 60.79

11Page:

Page | 69AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189310 10/9/2020 (Continued)012238  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
TAPE DISPENSER,HIGHTLIGHTER,ENVELOPES,PE3456979157
01-14-000-73110 71.46
01-15-000-73110 25.28
STORAGE BOX,FINGERTIP MOISTENER,STAPLES,3456979159
01-17-205-73110 307.49

Total : 831.90

189311 10/9/2020 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S006676948.002 LIGHT STOCK FOR 171ST AND 80TH AVE
01-26-024-73870 512.90

Total : 512.90

189312 10/9/2020 019227  STREET COP TRAINING LLC 24004-323-1-E613 LIFESAVING MEDICAL TACTICS FOR LAW ENFOR
01-17-220-72140 199.00

Total : 199.00

189313 10/9/2020 007205  SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC. 180783 WATER TEST
60-00-000-72865 1,386.00
63-00-000-72865 594.00

Total : 1,980.00

189314 10/9/2020 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 512533 COVER FOR WHEEL
01-17-205-72540 36.88
BRACKET ENGINE512592
01-17-205-72540 69.31
BOX ASY GLOVE AND PANEL INSTRUMENT512832
01-17-205-72540 520.92
LIFT ASY-GAS512854
01-17-205-72540 59.50
TUBE ASY - A/C LINE512925
01-17-205-72540 70.84
TPMS SENSOR512933
01-17-205-72540 51.51

Total : 808.96

189315 10/9/2020 019613  TACTICALLY SOUND TRAINING CTR 100320 8 HRS RDS PISTOL 12 STUDENTS 09/17/20
01-17-220-72140 1,200.00VTP-018066

12Page:

Page | 70AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 1,200.00189315 10/9/2020 019613 019613  TACTICALLY SOUND TRAINING CTR

189316 10/9/2020 018724  THE LOCKER SHOP 77918 BOOTS
01-19-000-73610 238.00
PANTSO 76983
01-19-000-73610 161.00
PANTO 76984
01-19-000-73610 56.00
PANTSO 77917
01-19-000-73610 112.00
CARGO PANTSOE 76564
01-19-000-73610 112.00
PANTOE 76982
01-19-000-73610 56.00
CARGO PANTOE 77183
01-19-000-73610 56.00
SHIRTSOE 77188
01-19-000-73610 183.00
CAPS,SHIRT,BELT,SHORTSOE 78129
01-19-000-73610 185.00
PANTSOES 76565
01-19-000-73610 112.00
CARGO PANTOES 76818
01-19-000-73610 168.00
CARGO PANTSOES 76840
01-19-000-73610 168.00
PANTOES 76876
01-19-000-73610 56.00
SHIRTOES 77448
01-19-000-73610 56.00
PANTS AND SHIRTSOES 79040
01-19-000-73610 229.00

Total : 1,948.00

189317 10/9/2020 019560  THE STANDARD COMPANIES 134286B 3M CLEANING SUPPLIES
01-26-025-73580 496.00VTP-018015
SPRAYER BOTTLES AND PLASTIC BOTTLES134374

13Page:

Page | 71AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189317 10/9/2020 (Continued)019560  THE STANDARD COMPANIES
01-26-025-73580 245.50

Total : 741.50

189318 10/9/2020 014854  THOMSON REUTERS-WEST PYMNT CTR843111177 WEST INFORMATION CHARGES 9/1-9/30/20
01-17-225-72852 199.94

Total : 199.94

189319 10/9/2020 019192  TINLEY PARK CONVENTION CENTER 100620 2019 TXYR/2020 MGMT AGMT BAL DUE
12-00-000-79142 124,556.46

Total : 124,556.46

189320 10/9/2020 012480  TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERV.CORP IN1845299 FSA ADMIN FEES 11/1-11/30/20
01-12-000-72449 213.39

Total : 213.39

189321 10/9/2020 007930  TRANS UNION 09000335 BASIC SERVICE  8/26-09/25/20
01-17-225-72852 90.00

Total : 90.00

189322 10/9/2020 007909  TRI-RIVER POLICE TRAINING REG 4914 JUVEINILE OFFICER CERT COURSE J.SUTKO AN
01-17-220-72140 600.00

Total : 600.00

189323 10/9/2020 006362  VILLAGE OF OAK LAWN 1-9990015-00 ACCT#1-9990015-00 9/1-10/1/2020
60-00-000-73220 714,559.53
63-00-000-73220 659,593.42

Total : 1,374,152.95

189324 10/9/2020 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS4776358-0 PAPER
01-26-025-73110 171.36
SPEAKERS4779204-0
60-00-000-72127 12.75
63-00-000-72127 12.75
64-00-000-72127 10.92
BOOKENDS4782074-0
01-26-025-73110 11.50

14Page:

Page | 72AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 219.28189324 10/9/2020 010165 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS

189325 10/9/2020 016476  WRIGHT CONCRETE RECYCLING INC 073020-419 SEMI CONCRETE DUMP
01-26-023-72890 6.00
60-00-000-73681 9.80
64-00-000-73681 4.20

Total : 20.00

189326 10/9/2020 008636  ZETTLEMEIER'S BAKERY 5847-7 DONUTS FOR EMA TRAINING
01-21-000-72220 45.80

Total : 45.80

Bank total : 1,739,817.6889 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

15Page:

Page | 73AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2773 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-3 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
01-14-000-72542 376.83

Total : 376.83

2774 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-2 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
01-14-000-72542 301.44

Total : 301.44

2775 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200721W022 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
01-14-000-72542 129.07

Total : 129.07

2776 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ONE CALL MEDICAL INC
01-14-000-72542 390.00

Total : 390.00

2777 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200211W025-2 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 519.50

Total : 519.50

2778 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200211W025 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 721.50

Total : 721.50

2779 9/23/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-4 PAYEE-IPMG
01-14-000-72542 104.50

Total : 104.50

2796 10/6/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP2003*|2005*|2008*| PAYEE-ALPHA REVIEW CORPORATION
01-14-000-72542 7.64
64-00-000-72542 7.98
60-00-000-72542 3.36
63-00-000-72542 0.64
64-00-000-72542 1.72
01-14-000-72542 350.38
60-00-000-72542 15.64
63-00-000-72542 2.98

16Page:

Page | 74AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/09/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

12:09:36PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 390.342796 10/6/2020 018837 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP

2797 10/6/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009 PAYEE-MIDWEST ORTHOPEDIC CONSULTANTS
01-14-000-72542 86.14

Total : 86.14

Bank total : 3,019.329 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

1,742,837.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report98

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

17Page:

Page | 75AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ap_ff

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

1014 9/8/2020 002734  AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 156844,157003,157696 RESCUE EQUIPMENT: STRAPS,CMC MULTIPOD SY
36-00-000-73845 6,943.65

Total : 6,943.65

1015 9/21/2020 012371  LIFE FITNESS 1780131,211,212,214. TREADMILL, STAIR CLIMBER (#2 PAYMENT)
36-00-000-74032 27,033.64

Total : 27,033.64

Bank total : 33,977.292 Vouchers for bank code : ap_ff

1Page:

Page | 76AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189328 10/16/2020 002856  AIRY'S, INC 24151 SET UP ACCESS ROAD METRA TRAIN STATION
71-00-000-75801 3,008.34

Total : 3,008.34

189329 10/16/2020 002756  APCO INTERNATIONAL INC. 747532 APCO LAW ENFORCEMENT COMMUNICATIONS ONLI
01-21-210-72140 419.00VTP-018070

Total : 419.00

189330 10/16/2020 003166  B & J TOWING AND AUTO REPAIR 17608 SAFETY INSPECTION
01-26-023-72266 162.00
01-26-024-72266 43.00

Total : 205.00

189331 10/16/2020 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P31944755 SLA 12-8F BATTERY
14-00-000-72550 140.00

Total : 140.00

189332 10/16/2020 015212  BETTENHAUSEN AUTOMOTIVE 112040 AA SWITCH
01-26-024-72540 114.75

Total : 114.75

189333 10/16/2020 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV200163 TRUCK TIME FOR SPOILS DELIVERED TO KIMBE
60-00-000-73681 110.25
63-00-000-73681 12.25
64-00-000-73681 52.50
01-26-023-72790 75.00
REMOVAL OF SPOILS FROM RECYCLING BINS200164
60-00-000-73681 132.30
63-00-000-73681 14.70
64-00-000-73681 63.00
01-26-023-72790 90.00
TRUCK FOR LIMESTONE ETC DELIVERED TO STO200165
60-00-000-73860 75.60
63-00-000-73860 8.40
64-00-000-73860 36.00
01-26-023-73860 60.00
70-00-000-73860 20.00

2Page:

Page | 77AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 750.00189333 10/16/2020 002974 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV

189334 10/16/2020 012966  BOLING, THOMAS 08-20 SHAREPOINT MONTHLY MAINTENANCE,ENHANCEME
01-16-000-72650 1,387.50

Total : 1,387.50

189335 10/16/2020 010698  BRADFORD SYSTEMS CORP. 344451-1 (2) 20"X20" DOOR FILTER PART #550647.002
01-17-205-72530 480.00VTP-018046

Total : 480.00

189336 10/16/2020 019624  BROWN, PATRICIA Ref001397045 UB Refund Cst #00451577,overpmt
60-00-000-20599 100.85

Total : 100.85

189337 10/16/2020 014148  CALL ONE 330770 VILLAGE LANDLINE PHONE SERV 10/15-11/14/
01-19-000-72120 2,281.85
60-00-000-72120 2,804.60
63-00-000-72120 311.62
64-00-000-72120 1,335.53
01-17-205-72120 1,504.14
01-12-000-72120 231.25
01-14-000-72120 620.00
01-11-000-72120 5.20
01-12-000-72120 11.98
01-17-205-72120 11.98
01-19-000-72120 2.60
01-26-024-72120 3.13
01-33-310-72120 3.13
01-33-320-72120 3.13
60-00-000-72120 7.79
01-12-000-72120 69.94
01-14-000-72120 233.73
01-15-000-72120 42.32
01-17-205-72120 139.87
01-19-000-72120 62.57
01-19-020-72120 21.16
01-26-023-72120 27.60

3Page:

Page | 78AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189337 10/16/2020 (Continued)014148  CALL ONE
01-26-024-72120 27.60
01-33-300-72120 42.32
01-33-310-72120 42.32
01-33-320-72120 27.60
01-35-000-72120 27.60
01-53-000-72120 14.72
01-26-023-72120 3.13
60-00-000-72120 88.70
63-00-000-72120 9.84
64-00-000-72120 42.29

Total : 10,061.24

189338 10/16/2020 003304  CARLIN-MORAN LANDSCAPE INC 3278 MOWING SERVICES- MULTIPLE LOCATIONS
01-33-300-72744 1,200.00

Total : 1,200.00

189339 10/16/2020 003328  CATCHING FLUIDPOWER INC F99278-001 SEAL-LOK LIQUID GAUGES
01-26-023-72530 37.80

Total : 37.80

189340 10/16/2020 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC 2035256 PROLINE 3M SMF DUPLEX LC/LC CABLE
60-00-000-72565 21.19
BLACK BOX FIBER1M MM2079172
01-16-000-72565 8.62
CISCO CEILING GRID CLIPS2198721
01-16-000-72565 12.64
10FT CAT6 CABLES, DESKTOP SWITCH2327037
01-17-225-72565 105.63
CAT6 CABLES2331334
01-17-225-72565 82.92
APC SMART-UPS SMT2200C-UPS-1.98 KW-22002374419
01-17-225-72565 854.13VTP-018064

Total : 1,085.13

189341 10/16/2020 003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG 161243 01.R160373.00007 POST 4  LIFT STATION IM
61-00-000-75320 2,135.00

4Page:

Page | 79AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189341 10/16/2020 (Continued)003137  CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG
01.R160373.00002 INTERIM VILLAGE ENGINEE161244
65-00-000-75310 431.00
64-00-000-72840 768.00
01.R160373.00022 DRY UTILITY RELOCATION161246
27-00-000-72840 6,637.35

Total : 9,971.35

189342 10/16/2020 014645  CHRISTY WEBBER LANDSCAPES 78965 MAINTENANCE FOR LANDSCAPE BEDS PMT 7 OF
01-26-023-72881 19,670.03VTP-017849

Total : 19,670.03

189343 10/16/2020 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 5034343530 MEDICINE CABINET FD#48
01-19-000-73115 187.07
MEDICINE CABINET FD#475034343552
01-19-000-73115 313.18
MEDICINE CABINET - FD TRAINING TOWER5034343553
01-19-000-73115 142.00
MEDICINE CABINET FD#465034343574
01-19-000-73115 271.79
MEDICINE CABINET - FD#495034343582
01-19-000-73115 206.76

Total : 1,120.80

189344 10/16/2020 019626  COCHRANE, CONCETTA Ref001397047 UB Refund Cst #00465457
60-00-000-20599 49.79

Total : 49.79

189345 10/16/2020 017298  COMCAST BUSINESS 109220528 ACCT#930890410 ETHERNET SERVICE 10/1-10/
01-14-000-72125 982.95

Total : 982.95

189346 10/16/2020 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810010702 ACCT#8771401810010702 VH CABLE 10/16-11/
01-35-000-73870 8.18
ACCT#8771401810170142 VILLAGE HALL INTER8771401810170142
01-14-000-72125 233.35
ACCT#8771401810296319 PUBLIC SAFETY INTE877401810296319

5Page:

Page | 80AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189346 10/16/2020 (Continued)012057  COMCAST CABLE
01-14-000-72125 233.35

Total : 474.88

189347 10/16/2020 018311  CONNECTION 70200709 HP TONER
01-19-000-73110 614.20
TONER CARTRIDGE70492948
01-15-000-73110 341.91
TONER CARTRIDGE70492965
01-17-205-73110 129.82

Total : 1,085.93

189348 10/16/2020 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 66039176 CONSERV FS SUNNY
01-26-023-73680 270.63

Total : 270.63

189349 10/16/2020 012826  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC. 18431261701 ACCT#875222 UTIL#3613125002CUST795603-4
64-00-000-72510 628.47
ACCT#875223UTIL#3670129006CUST795603-5 818431262001
64-00-000-72510 265.22
ACCT#875224 UTIL#3784068018 CUST#795603-18431262601
60-00-000-72510 4,830.32
63-00-000-72510 4,830.31
ACCT#875227 UTIL#5095140029 CUST#795603-18431272201
64-00-000-72510 2,372.22

Total : 12,926.54

189350 10/16/2020 019531  COOK COUNTY TREASURER 2020-3 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS 7/1-9/30/
70-00-000-72775 835.50
01-26-024-72775 5,462.75

Total : 6,298.25

189351 10/16/2020 000550  CUPKAKE'S FAM FUN TIME CLOWNS 100120 MAGICIAN AND JUGGLER FOR BOO BASH
01-35-000-72923 825.00VTP-018062

Total : 825.00

189352 10/16/2020 016393  CUSTOM PATCHES INC 2584758 CUSTOM DESIGNED PATCHES

6Page:

Page | 81AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189352 10/16/2020 (Continued)016393  CUSTOM PATCHES INC
01-19-000-73870 454.48

Total : 454.48

189353 10/16/2020 003770  DUSTCATCHERS INC 76602 MATS-VH
01-26-025-72790 65.93
MATS-PW GARAGE76604
01-26-025-72790 99.08

Total : 165.01

189354 10/16/2020 016399  EBNER, MICHAEL E 101220 DJ SERVICES FOR BOO BASH
01-35-000-72923 250.00

Total : 250.00

189355 10/16/2020 011176  ELEMENT GRAPHICS & DESIGN, INC 16645 FORD INTERCEPTOR - GRAPHICS
01-17-205-72540 530.70

Total : 530.70

189356 10/16/2020 004362  FIVE ALARM FIRE & SAFETY EQUIP 200051-1 UNIFIRE 55LINK SABRE TOOTH CARBIDE CHAIN
01-19-000-72530 426.48

Total : 426.48

189357 10/16/2020 015058  FLEETPRIDE 60691097 BRAKE CHMBR
60-00-000-72540 31.50
63-00-000-72540 10.50
64-00-000-72540 18.00
RUBBER MUD FLAP60691207
60-00-000-72540 10.99
63-00-000-72540 3.66
64-00-000-72540 6.29
BRACKET60755458
60-00-000-72540 9.36
63-00-000-72540 3.12
64-00-000-72540 5.34

Total : 98.76

189358 10/16/2020 019625  FLYNN, MICHAEL & NANCY Ref001397046 UB Refund Cst #00457777,overpmt

7Page:

Page | 82AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189358 10/16/2020 (Continued)019625  FLYNN, MICHAEL & NANCY
60-00-000-20599 773.00

Total : 773.00

189359 10/16/2020 012941  FMP 52-468109 HEATED OXYGEN (SLP)
01-19-000-72540 93.60

Total : 93.60

189360 10/16/2020 004185  FOREST LUMBER COMPANY 61668 POLY LAWN RAKE
01-26-023-73410 119.88

Total : 119.88

189361 10/16/2020 018387  GBJ SALES, LLC 3144 GLOVES
01-26-024-73845 214.70
01-26-023-73845 429.40
60-00-000-73845 270.52
63-00-000-73845 30.06
64-00-000-73845 128.82
ALCOHOL WIPES, FOAMING HAND SANITIZERS3253
01-26-025-73580 720.00
GLOVES3313
01-26-024-73845 99.38
01-26-023-73845 198.76
60-00-000-73845 125.22
63-00-000-73845 13.91
64-00-000-73845 59.63

Total : 2,290.40

189362 10/16/2020 019621  GGB CONSTRUCTION INC 100920 STICKER REFUND - SOLD TRUCK
06-00-000-79005 35.00

Total : 35.00

189363 10/16/2020 004438  GRAINGER 9668957260 ELECTRONICS WIPES
01-26-025-73580 92.92
MARKING TAP,STEEL/PLASTIC9669548001
01-26-023-73870 45.34
DRAIN CLEANER9670033001

8Page:

Page | 83AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189363 10/16/2020 (Continued)004438  GRAINGER
01-26-025-73580 151.60
FUSE9670033019
60-00-000-72528 131.48
63-00-000-72528 131.47
AIR COCK MNPTXFNPT HEXAGON SHOULDER9670456715
60-00-000-72528 114.70
63-00-000-72528 114.70
AIR COCK,MNPT HEXAGON SHOULDER X MNPT9670456723
60-00-000-72528 39.15
63-00-000-72528 39.15
LEAD TEST, 18 IN.9670659359
01-26-024-73410 70.88
TOILET BOWL CLEANER9672791713
01-26-025-73580 41.04

Total : 972.43

189364 10/16/2020 019627  HAZARDOUS WASTE HAULERS Ref001397048 UB Refund Cst #00495809
60-00-000-20599 69.35

Total : 69.35

189365 10/16/2020 018712  HIGH TOUCH HIGH TECH 0514 INTERACTIVE BOOTH  FOR BOO BASH MAKING
01-35-000-72923 500.00VTP-018069

Total : 500.00

189366 10/16/2020 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 100120 LATE FEE FOR INV#7132259 AND 7124863
01-26-023-72890 11.29
LINERS, 6 CASES7100179
01-26-025-73580 390.00
30YD EXCHANGE HAUL AND DUMP CHARGE7132259
01-26-023-72890 366.70

Total : 767.99

189367 10/16/2020 014178  ICS COLLECTION SERVICE INC 093020 COLLECTIONS FOR J.DOLCE AND R.ELJUBEH
01-14-000-72790 1,216.65

Total : 1,216.65

9Page:

Page | 84AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189368 10/16/2020 005123  ILLINOIS FIRE INSPECTORS ASSOC 21484 JULY 23,2020 ZOOM SEMINAR D.RIORDAN
14-00-000-72140 50.00

Total : 50.00

189369 10/16/2020 015497  ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 100920 RENEWAL FOR 2015 TOYOTA RAV4 JTMBRFREV9F
01-17-205-72860 151.00

Total : 151.00

189370 10/16/2020 004985  ILLINOIS STATE TOLL HWY AUTH G123000002384 ACCT#$9944 TOLL 7/1-9/30/20
01-17-205-72130 182.65

Total : 182.65

189371 10/16/2020 005127  INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE 291385 DRUG SCREENING G.YAKSICH
60-00-000-72150 20.65
63-00-000-72150 20.65
64-00-000-72150 17.70
EMPLOYMENT SCREENING TESTS291536
01-14-000-72985 65.00
01-42-000-72855 59.00
01-26-025-72735 79.00

Total : 262.00

189372 10/16/2020 016900  JPK CAPITAL, LTD Ref001359515. UB REFUND CST#00504428 - 8616 BANGOR DR,
60-00-000-20599 189.19

Total : 189.19

189373 10/16/2020 014190  LEHIGH HANSON 5847092 BED/BACKFILL GRADE8 STONE
70-00-000-73860 95.45
60-00-000-73860 360.79
63-00-000-73860 40.09
64-00-000-73860 171.80
01-26-023-73860 286.34

Total : 954.47

189374 10/16/2020 019628  LSF9 MASTER PARTICIPATION TRST Ref001397049 UB Refund Cst #00504517
60-00-000-20599 59.00

Total : 59.00

10Page:

Page | 85AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189375 10/16/2020 019379  MACQUEEN EMERGENCY GROUP W00543 SERVICE FOR ENFORCER PUMPER
01-19-000-72540 632.31

Total : 632.31

189376 10/16/2020 005644  MARTIN IMPLEMENT P29704 BLADE
01-26-023-72530 110.63

Total : 110.63

189377 10/16/2020 006074  MENARDS 94282 EMA GARAGE ITEMS
01-21-000-72530 43.44
SMOKE ALARMS94300
01-19-020-73605 55.00

Total : 98.44

189378 10/16/2020 012517  MERIDIAN IT INC 481878 NETMOTION DMZ MIGRATION,WATER TOWER FIBE
01-16-000-72650 925.00

Total : 925.00

189379 10/16/2020 019623  MISFITS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 2021004-01 STREAMBANK STABILIZATION IMPROVEMENTS 1S
65-00-000-75310 102,960.00

Total : 102,960.00

189380 10/16/2020 017764  MONTANA & WELCH, LLC. 12998  LICENSE HEARINGS  JPW 8/5/20 AND 8/11/2
01-14-000-72876 1,170.00

Total : 1,170.00

189381 10/16/2020 015723  NICOR 06-82-16-1000 0 ACCT#06821610000 METER 2769335 6640 167T
60-00-000-72511 14.69
63-00-000-72511 14.69
64-00-000-72511 12.58
ACCT#09977410001 METER 5146885 7801 W 1909-97-74-1000 1
01-26-025-72511 161.35
ACCT#12213610004 METER 5031396 8/28-9/3012-21-36-1000 4
01-26-025-72511 176.57

Total : 379.88

189382 10/16/2020 006221  NORTHERN SAFETY CO. INC. 904161189 HAND AND SURFACE SANITIZER SPRAY
01-26-025-72525 119.88

11Page:

Page | 86AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 119.88189382 10/16/2020 006221 006221  NORTHERN SAFETY CO. INC.

189383 10/16/2020 013096  PACE SYSTEMS INC IN00033212 SMART KIT
01-16-000-72565 340.00
HPE MIDLINE HARD DRIVE 1 TBIN00033294
01-16-000-72565 500.00

Total : 840.00

189384 10/16/2020 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 064409/1 ACCT#9404 VELCRO
01-19-000-73870 12.99
ACCT#891431 FLEXSEAL SPRAY064411/1
60-00-000-73410 26.18
63-00-000-73410 2.91
64-00-000-73410 12.47
ACCT#891431 EAR BLUGS, TAPE,POWER BIT SE064419/1
64-00-000-72525 27.16

Total : 81.71

189385 10/16/2020 019629  PETRINI, MARTINO Ref001397050 UB Refund Cst #00509798
60-00-000-20599 32.99

Total : 32.99

189386 10/16/2020 006597  PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER 8000-9000-0107-6300 ACCT#8000-9000-0107-6300 POSTAGE BY PHON
01-33-300-72110 374.05
01-13-000-72110 124.85
01-17-217-72110 97.70
01-21-000-72110 1.00
01-14-000-72110 575.70
14-00-000-72110 71.50
01-19-020-72110 71.90
01-35-000-72110 1.45
01-33-310-72110 72.85
01-41-056-72110 0.50
06-00-000-72110 1.50
01-41-050-72110 108.50
60-00-000-72110 233.03
64-00-000-72110 99.87

12Page:

Page | 87AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189386 10/16/2020 (Continued)006597  PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER
01-14-000-72110 286.45
ACCT#8000-9000-0107-6300 POSTAGE BY PHON8000-9000-0107-6300.
01-14-000-72110 539.00
01-33-300-72110 589.00
01-41-040-72110 25.73
01-13-000-72110 47.85
01-41-046-72110 48.00
01-17-217-72110 43.50
01-21-000-72110 0.50
01-14-000-72110 1,044.53
14-00-000-72110 201.45
01-19-020-72110 106.15
01-35-000-72110 200.75
01-33-310-72110 133.30
01-42-000-73870 0.50
06-00-000-72110 1,324.10
60-00-000-72110 473.55
64-00-000-72110 202.95
01-26-025-73870 8.30

Total : 7,110.01

189387 10/16/2020 006507  POSTMASTER, U. S. POST OFFICE 101420 REPLENISH RETURN SERVICE ACCOUNT
01-17-205-72110 100.00

Total : 100.00

189388 10/16/2020 006850  QUILL CORPORATION 11075714 RUBBERBANDS
01-33-300-73110 70.04
FOLDERS, ENVELOPES, NOTEBOOKS11102781
01-33-300-73110 370.74
STAPLES11110659
01-33-300-73110 7.05
CREDIT RUBBERBAND ORDER INV110757141134956
01-33-300-73110 -70.04

Total : 377.79

189389 10/16/2020 014412  RAINS, SCOTT 100820 POLICE DOG FOOD

13Page:

Page | 88AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189389 10/16/2020 (Continued)014412  RAINS, SCOTT
01-17-220-72240 56.99

Total : 56.99

189390 10/16/2020 017584  RELADYNE 1307280-IN AFL API CERTIFIED DEF DR 9522APIDEF0810
01-19-000-72540 161.70

Total : 161.70

189391 10/16/2020 006870  RELIABLE FIRE EQUIPMENT 27237 6YR COMPLIANCE 10#RES-ABC,REPAIR PARTS,T
01-19-000-72535 79.05

Total : 79.05

189392 10/16/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 20100014 12-238 TP 80TH AV PROJ COORDINATION 191S
30-00-000-75810 2,929.50

Total : 2,929.50

189393 10/16/2020 015712  SANDENO EAST INC 5566 N-30 SURFACE
01-26-023-73780 316.50

Total : 316.50

189394 10/16/2020 007092  SAUNORIS 640577 SOD
01-26-023-73680 668.00
SOD640627
01-26-023-73680 341.00

Total : 1,009.00

189395 10/16/2020 013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7482PH2-38 LANDSCAPE PLANNING
01-26-023-72847 761.25VTP-017897
NATURALIZED STORMWATER MAINTENANCE7698-59
01-26-023-72847 1,195.00VTP-017852
FIELD INSPECTIONS7946-1
01-26-023-72847 598.75VTP-017834
LAWN TREATMENT AREAS7947-20
01-26-023-72847 66.25VTP-017842
PLANTERS8081-31
01-26-023-72847 197.50VTP-017892
FAIRFIELD GLEN POND RESTORATION8322-25

14Page:

Page | 89AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189395 10/16/2020 (Continued)013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD.
30-00-000-73681 2,788.75VTP-017820
APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION8323-26
30-00-000-73681 2,023.75VTP-017819
URBN FORESTRY PROGRAM8498-21
01-26-023-72847 3,958.75VTP-017837
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE BEDS8803-07
01-26-023-72847 666.25VTP-017847

Total : 12,256.25

189396 10/16/2020 002592  SPOK, INC. D6092566V ACCT#6092566-6 PAGER SERVICE
01-17-205-72125 68.78

Total : 68.78

189397 10/16/2020 018291  SUPERIOR PUMPING SERV,LLC 2251 LIFT STATION SERVICE
64-00-000-72525 922.20
PUMP#2 SERVICE2266
64-00-000-72525 1,342.20

Total : 2,264.40

189398 10/16/2020 019620  SUPREME WINDOWS 100620 OVERPAID FOR CONTRACTORS LICENSE- SUPREM
01-14-000-79015 50.00

Total : 50.00

189399 10/16/2020 011248  TEMPERATURE EQUIPMENT CORP. 6473728-00 PW HVAC - HH18HA138
01-26-025-72520 8.70

Total : 8.70

189400 10/16/2020 018724  THE LOCKER SHOP OES 79335 CAP,SHIRT,BOOTS
01-19-000-73610 263.00
SHIRTS,SHORTS,CAPOES 79336
01-19-000-73610 138.00
SHIRTS,SWEATPANTS,SHORTOES 79337
01-19-000-73610 244.00
CARGO SHORTOES 79338
01-19-000-73610 49.00
BOOTSOQ 79334

15Page:

Page | 90AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189400 10/16/2020 (Continued)018724  THE LOCKER SHOP
01-19-000-73610 159.00
CARGO SHORTOS 76631
01-19-000-73610 49.00
INSOLES,BOOTS,SHIRT,BELT,NAMEPLATES 78128
01-19-000-73610 350.00
SHIRTSS 78855
01-19-000-73610 34.00

Total : 1,286.00

189401 10/16/2020 013200  TRIBUNE PUBLISHING COMPANY 025887544000 SEPT'20 CLASSIFIED LISTINGS
01-33-300-72330 138.00

Total : 138.00

189402 10/16/2020 008040  UNDERGROUND PIPE & VALVE CO 045103-01 CLAMPS
60-00-000-73630 470.61VTP-018053
63-00-000-73630 52.29VTP-018053
64-00-000-73630 224.10VTP-018053

Total : 747.00

189403 10/16/2020 012368  VISION INTEGRATED GRAPHICS,LLC 540011 SEPTEMBER'20 LATE NOTICES
60-00-000-72310 700.80
64-00-000-72310 300.34
SEPTEMBER'20  WATER BILLS540012
60-00-000-72310 1,147.21
64-00-000-72310 491.66

Total : 2,640.01

189404 10/16/2020 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS4782077-0 CREAMER
01-26-024-73115 11.39
60-00-000-73115 15.95
64-00-000-73115 6.84
01-26-023-73115 22.79
PAPER478927-0
01-26-025-73110 257.04

Total : 314.01

16Page:

Page | 91AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189405 10/16/2020 015154  WELLS FARGO  BANK 1893079 PAYING AGENT FEE TIN309GOR TINLEY PARK,
31-00-000-96200 125.00
60-00-000-96200 43.75
63-00-000-96200 43.75
64-00-000-96200 37.50

Total : 250.00

Bank total : 222,792.3378 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

17Page:

Page | 92AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2799 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82

Total : 268.82

2800 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-2 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82

Total : 268.82

2801 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-3 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82

Total : 268.82

2802 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200528W014 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
01-14-000-72542 472.25

Total : 472.25

2803 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-4 PAYEE-LOYOLA UNIVERSITY MED CT
01-14-000-72542 435.85

Total : 435.85

2804 10/13/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-5 PAYEE-PAMELA YOUNKER
01-14-000-72542 1,113.02

Total : 1,113.02

Bank total : 2,827.586 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

259,597.20Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report86

18Page:

Page | 93AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



10/16/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 9:44:13AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

19Page:

Page | 94AGENDA - 10/20/2020, D... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 
NO. 2020-O-064 

 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 91-O-083 TO PERMIT AN 
CAR WASH AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE NORTH CREEK GAS N 

WASH RESUBDIVISION 
 

 
 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
CYNTHIA A. BERG 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 

DIANE M. GALANTE 
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
Board of Trustees 

 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

 
  

Page | 95AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-O-064 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 91-O-083 TO PERMIT AN CAR WASH 
AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE NORTH CREEK GAS N WASH RESUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) previously approved Ordinance No. 
91-O-083 establishing the North Creek Business Park Planned Unit Development (“North Creek 
PUD”); and  

 
WHEREAS, a petition for the granting of an amendment to the North Creek PUD 

(“Amendment”) to permit a car wash as a permitted use at 18421 West Creek Drive and 7451 183rd 
Street, Tinley Park, Illinois (“Subject Property”) has been filed by Leonard McEnery, on behalf of 
Lenny’s Food N Fuel 183rd Street, LLC (“Petitioner”) with the Village Clerk of this Village and 
has been referred to the Plan Commission of the Village and has been processed in accordance 
with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, said Plan Commission held a public hearing on the question of whether the 

Amendment should be granted on October 1, 2020, at the Village Hall of this Village of Tinley 
Park (“Village”), and by teleconference per Gubernatorial Executive Order 2020-18 and the 
“Village of Tinley Park Temporary Public Participation Rules & Procedures”, at which time all 
persons were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and   
 

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said public hearing 
by publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said public 
hearing in the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley 
Park; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission vote 4-0 and has filed its report and findings and 
recommendations that the proposed Amendment be approved with this President and Board of 
Trustees, and this Board of Trustees has duly considered said report of findings and 
recommendations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to approve said Amendment; and  

Page | 96AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein.  
 
SECTION 2: That the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, hereby 
approve and accept said Amendment to the North Creek PUD as defined in Ordinance No. 91-O-
083, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, to add the following underlined permitted uses in alphanumerical 
order:  
 

A. The permitted uses shall be those “principal uses” as set forth in the Tinley Park Zoning 
Ordinance for ORI Office and Restricted Industrial District. Also, the following additional 
uses shall be permitted. 
 

1. Automobile service (gas) station with a convenience store in the North Creek Food 
N Fuel/Gas N Wash Resubdivision. ( Ord. #2019-O-075) 

2. Banks and financial institutions, including drive-ins and cash stations. 
3. Car wash in the North Creek Food N Fuel/Gas N Wash Resubdivision. 
4. Clubs, memberships, including health clubs, tennis, racquetball, handball and swim 

clubs.  
5. Dinner theaters and theaters.  
6. Day care centers. 
7. Hotels, and incidental retail uses.  
8. Office supply and computer stores.  
9. Product showrooms. 
10. Recording studios.  
11. Warehousing, wholesale establishments, and distribution facilities.  

 
SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.  
 
SECTION 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval.  
 
SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law.  
 
  

Page | 97AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PASSED THIS 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
AYES:   
            
NAYS:   
            
ABSENT:  
             
APPROVED THIS 17th day of November, 2020. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
                VILLAGE CLERK  

Page | 98AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2020-O-064, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 91-O-083 

TO PERMIT AN CAR WASH AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE NORTH CREEK GAS N 

WASH RESUBDIVISION,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park on November 17,  2020.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 17th day of November, 2020. 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page | 99AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TO:    VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

FROM:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 

 

SUBJECT:   MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 1, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 

 

ITEM #1 Workshop/Public Hearing – Lenny’s Food N Fuel – 18421 West Creek Drive – Special 

Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation with exceptions 

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant Leonard McEnery on behalf of 

Lenny’s Food N Fuel 183rd Street, LLC (Contract Purchaser) an amendment to the North 

Creek Business Park Planned Unit Development Ordinance (Ord. 91-O-083) to permit an 

automobile car wash to be a Special Use on the subject property. Additionally, to grant a 

Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation with exceptions from the Zoning Ordnance 

for the property located at 18421 West Creek Drive in the ORI PUD (Office and Restricted 

Industrial, North Creek Business Park PUD) zoning district. The requests will include Site 

Plan Approval and Final Plat Approvals to allow for the addition of a car wash to the 

previously approved automobile service (gas) station and convenience store site. 

Present Plan Commissioners:    Chairman Garrett Gray (Participated electronically) 

Steven Vick (Participated electronically) 

Eduardo Mani (Participated electronically) 

     Lucas Engel (Participated electronically) 

     Kehla West (Participated electronically) 

James Gaskill  

 

Absent Plan Commissioners:  Angela Gatto 

     Mary Aitchison 

 

Village Officials and Staff:    Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager (Participated electronically) 

     Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary 

 

Guests:     Len McEnery, Applicant 

     Lyman Tieman, Attorney 

     Brian Hertz, MG2A - Civil Engineer 

  

Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager,  presented the Staff Report.  She noted that the Staff Report has been distributed 

to the Plan Commission, the Applicant and is posted on the website in its entirety. The staff report is attached to 

these minutes and made a part of the meeting record. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked the Applicant to comment. 

 

Lyman Tieman, Attorney for the Applicant introduced himself, Mr. McEnery and Mr. Hertz and noted he believes they 

are in tune with the findings of staff on this development and also agree to the conditions indicated in the staff report.  

He will answer any questions.  Mr. McEnery also noted staff did an excellent job of presenting the staff report.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Commissioners. 

 

COMMISSIONER ENGEL noted he supported the Gas Station and the Car Wash will be a great addition.  The 

Petitioner has agreed to resolve any issues the staff has and he is happy moving forward with this.  It will be a great 

addition to the Village.   

 

COMMISSIONER MANI asked for clarification on the landscape waivers.  He questioned which trees will be omitted.   

Page | 100AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

Ms. Wallrich noted the bird’s eye view looking east is accurate.  Per the landscape plan there are street trees and 5 or 6 

trees in the parking lot.  There are 4 other trees required, but she noted they would obscure the building and signage.  

 

COMISSIONER MANI noted he is concerned about impacting the integrity of the PUD.  He does not want to see the 

integrity fade away.  He drives past this property several times a day and he does not want to see a hole and he felt the 

plan is not up to the standards/charm/character of the code.   

 

Ms. Wallrich replied this will be a heavier landscaped property than most of the other properties in the immediate area.  

She noted that landscaping is one of the things Mr. McEnery does well with his other properties, not only in terms of 

installing, but also in maintaining. Staff stated she felt the proposed landscape plan meets the intent of the code.  

 

COMMISSIONER MANI noted the petitioner is requesting a substantial deviation regarding the sign on the east side.  

He thinks this is too much and is above and beyond what code allows.   

 

COMMISSIONER WEST agreed with COMMISSIONER MANI regarding the degree of deviation and the stated 

intent of the area.  She agrees with staff that the deviation makes sense, given the business and also given what else is 

in the area.  She thanks staff for a very thorough report.   

 

COMMISSIONER GASKILL is satisfied with everything.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted he agrees with staff’s recommendation.  He is okay with the setback exception and  the 

parking in the front yard. It is screened well from West Creek Drive and based on the other Food N Fuel’s with car 

washes, the sites look generally clean and well maintained.   

 

He agrees with staff’s recommendation of the canopy columns matching the canopy.  He likes the fact that the lots are 

being consolidated.  The extra curb cut is okay.  He agrees with COMMISSIONER MANI and wonders if there is a 

need for a car wash sign on the east side.  From the conceptual view it looked like the trees obscured most of building 

and this is great for most of the surrounding businesses across from the pond.  This is not a deal breaker, but he does 

not feel a sign is necessary in this area.  There is a good buffer to the east of the building and will not disturb the charm 

of the area.  It will fit very tastefully.   

 

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER WEST to open the Public 

Hearing for Lenny’s Gas N Fuel (Car Wash Addition) 

 

AYE:  COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:     None.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice vote.   

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted he had confirmation of the legal notice for this public hearing be published in the local 

newspaper as required by state law. 

 

Anyone wishing to speak on this matter will be sworn in after staff’s presentation.   

 

Ms. Wallrich noted she had nothing more to add except the trees on the west of the building are deciduous trees and 

there is a good point that in the summer you would not see the car wash sign but in the winter you would.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked the Applicant for comments.   

 

Page | 101AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Mr. Tieman noted he had nothing more to add and they have heard the report that was prepared and want to make it 

part of the public record.  He noted they have no comments or changes to that report to add.  They are fine with any 

conditions that are placed upon them as indicated in the report.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the public.   

 

Ms. Wallrich noted an email was sent in by Mr. Vivek Iyengar, MD, owner of Dermatology Associates at 18425 West 

Creek Drive.  He did not find any opposition to the car wash.  He had questions as to the traffic flow and asked for all 

traffic to enter and exit from 183rd Street and to add a traffic light.  He also commented on signage, because he has 

signage issues on his own building.    

 

Ms. Wallrich tried to reach him by phone and was unable to do so prior to the meeting.   

 

  

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GASKIL, seconded by COMMISSIONER ENGEL to close the Public 

Hearing for Lenny’s Gas N Fuel (Car Wash Addition) 

 

AYE:  COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:     None.   

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice vote.   

Ms. Wallrich presented the Standards for Special Use, Site Plan and Architectural Approvals as noted in the Staff 

Report.   

 

 

MOTION 1 (Site Plan) 

 

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER MANI, seconded by COMMISSIONER ENGEL to grant the Petitioner, 

Lenny’s Food N Fuel 183rd Street LLC, Site Plan Approval to construct a car wash in addition to the previously 

approved gas station and convenience store building at 18421 West Creek Drive and 7451 183rd Street in the ORI PD 

(Office & Restricted Industrial, North Creek Business Park PUD) Zoning District, in accordance with the plans 

submitted and listed in the October 1, 2020 Staff Report and subject to the following conditions: 

1. Any changes in drive-thru or parking demand from what was presented would require a new 

traffic/drive-thru analysis and prior approval to ensure the on-site drive-thru stacking and parking is 

sufficient. 

2. Site Plan approval is subject to final engineering review and approval. 

3. Columns used on the canopies of the car wash site shall match the material and design utilized on the 

primary gas station canopy. 

4. Site Plan approval is subject to approval of the PUD Ordinance Amendment, Special Use for a 

Substantial Deviation with the PUD, and Final Plat approval.” 

 

AYE:    COMMISSIONERS ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:    COMMISSIONER MANI  

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.   

 

 

MOTION 2 (PUD/Special Use Ordinance Amendment): 

 

Page | 102AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER WEST, seconded by COMMISSIONER GASKILL to recommend that the 

Village Board amend Section 4-A. in Ordinance 91-O-083 (Special Use for North Creek Business Park PUD) at the 

request of Lenny’s Food N Fuel, 183rd Street LLC to permit an “car wash” as a permitted use on Lot 1 of the North 

Creek Gas N Wash Resubdivision. 

 

 

AYE:    COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:    NONE 

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.   

 

 

MOTION 3 (Special Use for Substantial Deviation): 

 

A  Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER MANI  to recommend that the 

Village Board grant a Special Use Permit for a  Substantial Deviation from the North Creek Business Park PUD and 

Exceptions from the Zoning Ordinance as listed in the staff report to the Petitioner, Lenny’s Food N Fuel 183rd Street 

LLC, to permit a car wash to be added to the previously approved gas station and convenience store at 18421 West 

Creek Drive and 7451 183rd Street in the ORI PD (Office & Restricted Industrial, North Creek Business Park PUD) 

zoning district, in accordance with the plans submitted and listed herein and adopt Findings of Fact as proposed by 

Village Staff in the October 1, 2020 Staff Report.” 

 

AYE:    COMMISSIONERS ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:    MANI 

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.   

 

MOTION 4 (Final Plat): 

 

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER WEST to recommend that the 

Village Board grant approval to the Petitioner, Lenny’s Food N Fuel, 183rd Street LLC Final Plat Approval for 

North Creek Gas N Wash Resubdivision in accordance with the Final Plat submitted and listed herein, subject to the 

following condition: 

 

1. The Final Plat approval is subject to Final Engineering approval by the Village Engineer.” 

 

AYE:    COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, WEST and CHAIRMAN GRAY.   

 

NAY:    NONE 

 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.   

 

The staff report was presented at the meeting and is hereby entered into the record. 

This item will be heard at the Village Board on Tuesday, October 20, 2020 and November 3, 2020. 

Lyman Tieman and Len McEnery both thanked the Plan Commission for their support and look forward to opening 

in Tinley Park.   

 

 

Page | 103AGENDA - 10/20/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



















































AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM=700.20 T/P N-S=692.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM-702.38 T/P E=695.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-696.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-698.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 26' EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PER DOC. R2001136028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT WALKING PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOK COUNTY R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-STORE 9,100 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-697.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 VACUUM SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 EMPLOYEE SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.87 12"RCP W=693.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=697.42 42" INV. NW=691.92 42" INV. SE=691.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LOCATION OF EX. 12" D.I. WATER MAIN (FIELD VERIFY SIZE, TYPE, & LOCATION PRIOR TO CONST.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.14 8"PVC SW=689.29 6"PVC W=689.99 6" PVC N=689.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.89 8"PVC W=690.39 8"PVC S=690.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.78 12"RCP E/W=692.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=697.05 18"RCP SW=692.95 12"RCP SE=693.00 12"RCP W=693.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
JWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO. 20-643

AutoCAD SHX Text
JWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BPH



AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM=700.20 T/P N-S=692.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM-702.38 T/P E=695.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-696.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-698.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 26' EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PER DOC. R2001136028

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT WALKING PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOK COUNTY R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-STORE 9,100 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-697.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 VACUUM SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 EMPLOYEE SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.87 12"RCP W=693.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=697.42 42" INV. NW=691.92 42" INV. SE=691.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LOCATION OF EX. 12" D.I. WATER MAIN (FIELD VERIFY SIZE, TYPE, & LOCATION PRIOR TO CONST.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.14 8"PVC SW=689.29 6"PVC W=689.99 6" PVC N=689.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.89 8"PVC W=690.39 8"PVC S=690.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.78 12"RCP E/W=692.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=697.05 18"RCP SW=692.95 12"RCP SE=693.00 12"RCP W=693.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
c.o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c.o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c.o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO. 20-643

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN AGGREGATE BASE COURSE TY. B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" MIN P.C.C. (8" MIN. THRU DRIVEWAY ON 183rd STREET)  IDOT CLASS SI

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" HMA BINDER COURSE, N50

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HOT-MIX-ASPHALT  SURFACE COURSE, N50,  MIX C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, IDOT TY. B

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE W/ MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 - #5 BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.



AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM=700.20 T/P N-S=692.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VV RIM-702.38 T/P E=695.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-696.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PHONE VAULT RIM-698.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT WALKING PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOK COUNTY R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-STORE 9,100 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-698.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-697.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 VACUUM SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 EMPLOYEE SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NWL 692.0 HWL 696.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.87 12"RCP W=693.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=697.42 42" INV. NW=691.92 42" INV. SE=691.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LOCATION OF EX. 12" D.I. WATER MAIN (FIELD VERIFY SIZE, TYPE, & LOCATION PRIOR TO CONST.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.14 8"PVC SW=689.29 6"PVC W=689.99 6" PVC N=689.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM-697.89 8"PVC W=690.39 8"PVC S=690.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=695.78 12"RCP E/W=692.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET RIM=697.05 18"RCP SW=692.95 12"RCP SE=693.00 12"RCP W=693.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
c.o.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO. 20-643

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.-###.#

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER W/ MANHOLE

























AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 26' EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PER DOC. R2001136028

AutoCAD SHX Text
HERETOFORE DEDICATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
HERETOFORE DEDICATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' CORNER SIDE YARD BUILDING SETBACK PER DECLARATION RECORDED 12/26/1991 AS DOC. NO. R91-075280

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' FRONT YARD BUILDING SETBACK PER DECLARATION RECORDED 12/26/1991 AS DOC. NO. R91-075280

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' SIDE YARD BUILDING SETBACK PER DECLARATION RECORDED 12/26/1991 AS DOC. NO. R91-075280

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' REAR YARD BUILDING SETBACK PER DECLARATION RECORDED 12/26/1991 AS DOC. NO. R91-075280

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'



AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE









































































































































mailto:Edward.Tully2@cookcountyil.gov












mailto:Edward.Tully2@cookcountyil.gov


mailto:tppw@tinleypark.org


















http://www.eia.doe.gov







































































































































	Notice of Meeting
	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7
	Agenda Page 8
	Agenda Page 9
	Agenda Page 10
	Agenda Page 11
	Agenda Page 12
	ITEM #2 - Approval of Minutes 9/29/20
	ITEM #3 - Business Spotlight
	ITEM #4 - Trustee Galante
	ITEM #5 - Trustee Brennan
	ITEM #6 - Trustee Brennan
	ITEM #7 - CONSENT A
	ITEM #7 - CONSENT B
	ITEM #7 - CONSENT C
	ITEM #7 - CONSENT D
	ITEM #8 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #13 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #14 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #15 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #16 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #17 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #18 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #19 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #20 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #21 - Trustee Glotz 
	ITEM #22 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #23 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #24 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #25 - Trustee Brady
	ITEM #26 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #27 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #28 - Board Comment
	ITEM #29 - Public Comment
	ITEM #30 - Executive Session



